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Marie  
Keating’s  
Story 

Marie Keating was 
diagnosed with breast 
cancer on Wednesday, 25th 
September 1996. Her world, 
and her family’s world, fell 
apart that day.

‘Cancer’ had always been that word you 
don’t mention. It was referred to as the  
“Big C” and you always thought,  
“This is it, I am going to die.”  

“
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Two years previously, Marie had been diagnosed with what her 
doctor had called mastitis, a condition that causes inflammation 
and pain in the breast tissue. She had been told to take antibiotics 
and, if the symptoms did not go away, to come back. But Marie 
was Marie and had such a fear of hospitals and doctors that she 
had given birth to four of her five children at home. Her symptoms 
did not go away but she did not go back to the doctor until it was 
too late. By then she had a very large lump on her breast and her 
doctor immediately sent her to Beaumont Hospital for a biopsy. 
Because her case had become so advanced, the doctor there 
told her, ‘Marie, I don’t even have to do a biopsy to know that 
this is cancer, but we will’.

Marie was indeed diagnosed with breast cancer, and on 1st 
October 1996, underwent a full mastectomy. She started 
chemotherapy a few weeks later. Marie was very positive as 
were all her family, even though she was quite sick from the 
side-effects of her treatment.  Having been a hairdresser, she 
was devastated to lose her hair but rather than feeling sorry for 
herself she had great fun cutting and styling wigs, even dying 
them (although you’re not supposed to). 

In September 1997, Marie was given the ‘all clear’. It was an 
amazing day for her and her family. She went straight to the 
nurses on the day ward where she had spent so many months 
to give them the great news and thank them for all their support 
and love through her treatment. Unfortunately, Marie rarely did 
her physio exercises following her treatment and so developed 
lymphoedema, an abnormal build-up of fluid that causes swelling 
in the limbs. She walked the floors at night with the pain, trying 
not to wake any of her family, just suffering in silence. 

By October 1997, Marie started to have back pain and she 
returned to the hospital once more. Her doctor did an MRI 
and the results showed that she had three spots of cancer on 
her spine. Despite this awful news, she tried to stay positive, 
even throughout further radiotherapy treatment. Marie finished 
her radiotherapy in January 1998. However, unfortunately the 
treatment was not successful, and Marie lost her very brave 
battle with breast cancer on 2nd February 1998, aged just 51. 

The type of breast cancer that Marie died from is called Paget’s 
Disease, which is a decaying nipple that can be followed by a 
malignant tumour, causing breast cancer. The saddest thing 
for her family to accept was that this is a very curable form of 
the disease. Her five children and husband were absolutely 
devastated, but they were determined to do something to prevent 
other families going through what they had gone through. This is 
why the Marie Keating Foundation was founded. 

Marie’s family thought about what they could do to prevent 
this happening to other families, and so they decided to put 
mobile units on the road with registered nurses, to travel to all 
towns, cities, schools, shopping centres and places of work to 
provide free information to people on cancer prevention and  the 
importance of early detection and how it really can save your life. 
Marie Keating died because she did not know enough about 
cancer and the importance of early detection. If Marie had 
understood her symptoms and if she had been treated earlier, 
she would probably be alive today. 

This is where the Marie Keating Cancer Awareness Fund, now 
the Marie Keating Foundation started.
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Who We are 

The Marie Keating Foundation is a family 
of carers, patients, survivors, volunteers, 
supporters, health and social care 
professionals all supporting the cancer 
community in Ireland.

Every year more than 45,000 people are 
diagnosed with cancer in Ireland and on the 
basis of current projections, another 500,000 
Irish people will be diagnosed with cancer 
over the next ten years.

At the Marie Keating Foundation, we recognise that while cancer is not 
always life threatening, it is almost always life changing. We understand 
how cancer can affect every aspect of a person’s life – not just their 
physical health - and how support at Every Step of the cancer journey 
can really make a huge difference.

Through our range of cancer prevention, early detection, awareness and 
support services, we work to achieve our mission to ‘Make Cancer Less 
Frightening by Enlightening’ and someday, fulfil our vision of ‘A World 
Free from the Fear of Cancer’.
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Our Vision:

  “A World free from 
the fear of  cancer

Our Mission:

  “To make cancer 
less frightening by 
enlightening 
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Our Values 
Our work will be underpinned by 
our values of: Empathy

We care deeply about people 
who are experiencing cancer. 
Compassion and empathy 
are the core of our services. 
Upholding the dignity of 
whatever we help matters the 
most.

Support
Everyone who accesses our 
services is unique. Personal 
support ensures everyone is 
cared for fully and respectfully.

Kindness
Positivity, hope, love

Family 
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Patient Voice
Ensuring that patient voice is 
central to everything we do, we 
will always listen, try to understand 
and do all we can to represent 
your views and respond to your 
needs. 

Collaboration
Partnership, sharing and teamwork 
are at the heart of MKF  to improve 
our services and outcomes for 
patients, survivors & families. 

Open
Our services are accessible to 
everyone and our footprint covers 
26 counties. Ensuring we are there 
for all, even the most remote and 
underserved communities is a 
priority for us.   

Trust
We hold the trust of our donors, 
supporters and ambassadors 
dear. Our work is underpinned 
by integrity, honesty and 
transparency.

Accountability
We continue to hold the highest 
standards in charity governance. 
We take the responsibility given to 
us by our supporters seriously and 
ensure we are as efficient, while 
still being effective, as possible.  

Professionalism
All our work is underpinned by 
evidence meaning the public can 
trust our information and advice. 

Inclusivity Excellence
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Meet the Team

The Marie Keating Foundation 
is a community of people who 
care. At the heart of that is our 
team of 21 nurses and office staff 
who work diligently all year round 
to provide the public with life-
saving information, awareness 
campaigns, support and 
survivorship services. 
Our aim is to educate people about how to reduce their 
risk of cancer and spot cancer early and to support 
anyone along the cancer journey from those newly 
diagnosed, to anyone living with cancer or adjusting to 
life after treatment. The Marie Keating Foundation and our 
team are here for you and anyone affected by cancer at 
Every Step. 

Here is the Marie Keating Foundation Team 

10
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Message from  
the Chair,  
Michael O’Reilly 

Following another very challenging year with 
the ongoing impact of COVID-19,  
I am extremely proud to present the Marie 
Keating Foundation’s 2021 Annual Report 
on behalf of our Board of Directors.

12
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Message from  
the Chair,  
Michael O’Reilly 

Following another very challenging year with the ongoing impact of COVID-19, 
I am extremely proud to present the Marie Keating Foundation’s 2021 Annual 
Report on behalf of our Board of Directors.

Throughout the last two years, the team have worked tirelessly to ensure people 
across Ireland continued to receive the information they need about the warning 
signs and prevention of cancer, while also providing support and community to 
those at every step of a cancer journey. 
Cancer rates continue to grow and it remains the disease with the highest mortality 
rates in Ireland.  The positive news is that with better awareness, early diagnosis 
and treatment options, more and more people are coming out the other side or are 
living longer with cancer. 

The demand for the Foundation’s services increased further in 2021. During this 
unprecedented time of isolation and anxiety the need for these services, provided 
by the Foundation’s nursing team was more in demand than ever before. 

Throughout 2021, the Foundation’s services expanded their reach and impact.
Membership of the Positive Living group supporting  women living with metastatic 
breast cancer, grew by 68% and a new Positive Living group for men with 
advanced cancer was also established. The Foundation’s nurses reached more 
people online than ever before through social media livestreams, virtual support 
meetings and vital online webinar presentations.

A highlight of last year was that the Marie Keating Foundation won the Good 
Governance award for our 2020 annual report. This meant so much to the Board 
and the entire team at the Foundation as it highlighted our continued focus on 
transparency, accountability and integrity and was wonderful recognition of our 
governance.  

New partnerships were formed, awards won, and creative campaigns were rolled 
out, increasing awareness of all of the common cancers affecting men and women. 
The Foundation also worked hard to advocate for the reinstatement of cancer 
services in a landscape where COVID-19 continued to be front and central. 

Despite the ongoing challenges with fundraising in the ongoing COVID landscape, 
I am delighted to report that we were able to spend more than ever on cancer 
services despite a small decrease in our annual income. The team rose to the 
challenge and embraced change with agility while sustaining the core mission and 
vision of the Marie Keating Foundation as set out in our Strategic Plan 2020 – 2025.  

In another year of adversity and challenge, I would like to personally thank our 
Board of Directors for their continued commitment to the work of the Foundation 
and for giving so generously of their time and expertise throughout 2021. They 
were called upon more than ever as the Foundation continued to rise to the 
challenge of the global pandemic so I would like to acknowledge your commitment 
and dedication here. 

Thank you to all our loyal and dedicated supporters, partners and sponsors; to the 
Keating Family for their heartfelt commitment; to our loyal and dedicated volunteers 
whose time, support and talents are vital to keeping the Foundation going and last 
but not least to all the staff who work so incredibly hard to achieve our mission 
every day. Without you we could not continue to be there for so many people 
affected by cancer when they need our support.

Michael O’ Reilly  
Chairman
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Message from  
the Chief Executive  
Officer,  
Liz Yeates

14

2021: Another year that challenged all of us 
at the Marie Keating Foundation to display 
our agility and dedicated support for those 
affected by cancer throughout Ireland.
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Message from  
the Chief Executive  
Officer,  
Liz Yeates

While 2020 was truly an unforgettable year with COVID-19, 2021 also challenged 
us to adapt with agility to ensure that we continued to be there for the cancer 
community during the ongoing pandemic.

The Marie Keating Foundation’s strategic plan, which was launched in 2020, emphasised 
the need to be continuously agile in what has become a time of protracted instability 
with COVID-19. Responding to the particular vulnerability of the cancer community 
exacerbated by delays with hospital appointments, cancellations of surgeries, paused 
screening services leading to delayed diagnoses of thousands of cancer patients in 
Ireland meant that the Marie Keating Foundation has had to continuously strive to do 
more, to support patients and families affected by cancer. 

With the ongoing COVID-19 restrictions and recognising how cancer patients were 
categorised as high risk, often having to cocoon and self-isolate at home, throughout 
2021 we continued to offer our support group meetings, seminars and on-line webinars 
via Zoom and answered patient queries and concerns by phone. We continued to 
develop our new COVID-19 and cancer webinar series, as well as one for carers on a 
range of topics affecting people during the pandemic. We learned quickly how cancer 
patients living with advanced cancer really wanted to maintain that all-important contact 
with the Marie Keating Foundation nurses and wanted to connect more regularly and in 
bigger numbers. The number of participants at our Positive Living meetings continued 
to grow and all our Survive and Thrive groups were held on-line so that people from all 
around Ireland were able to join in and avail of our nursing support, regardless of their 
location.

In 2021, with the generous support of the public and our donors, our nurses reached 
over xxx thousand people throughout Ireland bringing the all-important message of 
early detection to communities, schools, workplaces at venues all around the country. 
We know that doing more is not enough, we have to ensure that we do it responsibly, 
sustainably and accountably. That outlook has guided us through the last 24 years but 
in particular throughout the last two years of the global pandemic this has afforded 
the Marie Keating Foundation a leading reputation in the delivery of quality, effective, 
inclusive cancer support and survivorship services. Winning a Good Governance Award 
in October 2021 for our Annual Report highlighted how our work meets the highest 
standards of accountability and transparency and that everything we do for communities 
and families affected by cancer is in line with our mission of ‘making cancer less 
frightening by enlightening’ and our vision of a ’world free from the fear of cancer’.

With the conflict in Ukraine and impending fuel crisis, cost of living increases throughout 
Europe and looming economic crises in many areas, whilst we are learning to live with 
COVID-19, we are operating in an era of increased uncertainty. 

The Irish health system has yet to rebound and in the meantime thousands of people 
affected by cancer in Ireland are deeply impacted by delays, lack of resources, long 
waiting lists in our hospitals and the need for support and solidarity from organisations 
like the Marie Keating Foundation is great than ever. This at a time when these 
uncertainties are also impacting on our donors and supporters and their ability to donate 
which has contributed to a reduction in our income in 2021. Despite this, what this 
annual report shows is an organisation that is agile in responding to those challenges 
in an effective way, continually adapting our services and in fact we were able to spend 
more on charitable services in 2021 than in any previous year. 

This Annual Report communicates the impact the Marie Keating Foundation has 
throughout Ireland, and we need these stories of cancer patients and family members to 
remind ourselves of the ability to affect positive change - to support people at every step 
when they need it most as they navigate through the greatest challenges of their own 
lives.  

This could only be done through the dedication, passion and hard work of every staff 
member at the Marie Keating Foundation. As a small, tight-knit team with just 20 
members of staff we were proud to be able to step up to the challenge presented by 
COVID-19 and to ensure that we came through this crisis with our heads held high and 
actually in a stronger position than was predicted when COVID first hit. 

I would sincerely like to thank everyone – companies and individuals - who have 
supported our work over the past year – despite difficult circumstances for all.  A special 
word of appreciation to you all for making a donation or for lending a hand at public 
events and supporting our fundraising efforts throughout the year. We are so grateful for 
your support 

Finally thank you to our Board and leadership team who have helped to guide us 
through the last year and also reviewed and updated our Strategic Plan for 2020 – 2025 
which sets out a clear roadmap with key priorities over the next three years. We look 
forward to the years ahead with cautious optimism hopeful that 2022will bring more new 
possibilities for the Marie Keating Foundation.

Liz Yeates
Chief Executive Officer
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Message from  
our Patron,  
Ronan Keating 

Welcome to the 2021 Annual Report for the 
Marie Keating Foundation.

As patron and one of Marie’s five children, I am 
honoured to present this report to you. Following 
a year like 2020 was not easy, but I am 
extremely proud to showcase the incredible work 
the Marie Keating Foundation has accomplished. 
The adaptability of our team was tremendous, 
and even in trying times, we were able to touch 
the lives of those who needed our work most. 
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2021 marked 23 years since my siblings and I lost our Mam to a very curable 
form of breast cancer. To this day we still talk about all the wonderful birthdays, 
holidays, and memories she could have been around for if she had only been 
aware of the signs and symptoms of breast cancer. 

My Mam was only 51 when she passed, and if she had gone to see her doctor when the 
signs of her cancer started to show, she may still be with us today. The Marie Keating 
Foundation was established in her name and memory by my siblings and me, in hopes 
of providing support and education about cancer to the people of Ireland.

The Foundation prides itself on providing vital information and awareness to the Irish 
public to promote the early detection and diagnosis of cancer. We provide support and 
resources for cancer patients who need help financially and emotionally due to their 
cancer diagnosis. The incredible work we do at the Marie Keating Foundation would not 
be possible without our diligent team, the support of the public, our sponsors, and the 
dedication of our amazing volunteers. 

In 2021, the Marie Keating Foundation continued to adapt to the changes of the global 
world and was able to impact the lives of thousands of people. Our nurses engaged with  
28,823 people, both in person and through online forums, to spread awareness about 
the causes and signs of various types of cancers, as well as the importance of early 
detection and the difference it can make in recovery. 2021 was a year like none other, 
and I want to highlight the way our team adapted to continue to serve our community 
during difficult times. Through webinars, online support meetings, the launch of our 
first ever Talks Cancer Podcast Series, and much more, the Marie Keating Foundation 
continued to do amazing work. In addition to the expansion of online services, we were 
able to get our mobile units back on the road and begin in-person education again. Our 
team of nurses emphasised the difference a healthy lifestyle can make in one’s overall 
health as well as the importance of being vigilant about changes in one’s body and 
seeing their GP promptly when they are noticed. In addition to educational services, the 
Marie Keating Foundation continued to offer a host of patient support groups, such as 
the Survive and Thrive group, Positive Living group, and BRCA-specific support groups. 

A key focus of the Marie Keating Foundation is to create a world free from the fear 
of cancer, and through our awareness campaigns, we were able to talk openly and 
accurately about some of the most common cancers in Ireland. 

In 2021 the foundation promoted its mission and messaging through campaigns such 
as the Bowel Cancer awareness campaign in April, the ‘Breast Cancer Isn’t Just Pink’ 
campaign, ‘Stand Up for Your Prostate’ campaign, as well as the relaunch of our lung 
cancer campaign, ‘The Big Check Up’. Building off our 2020 lung cancer campaign, the 
foundation aimed in 2021 to bring awareness to the survivability of lung cancer if caught 
early. I am proud to announce that the Marie Keating Foundation worked alongside 
director Brian O’Malley to produce our first-ever short film called The News. 

The News was a huge success and reached over 1,270,000 people. A screening of the 
film was held at the Stella Theatre in Rathmines, with a lovely turnout. 

I would once again like to extend my gratitude to the entire Marie Keating Foundation 
team, who have worked diligently through 2021 to bring awareness, education, and 
support to the Irish people. I would like to give a special thanks to our CEO, Liz Yeates, 
who has expertly led our team through the challenges of a global pandemic and 
evolving world. I would also like to thank the Board for all they do for the foundation, 
their time, energy, and knowledge are invaluable here at the Marie Keating Foundation.

Lastly, if you are in need of support and have not yet connected with the Marie Keating 
Foundation, I urge you to reach out to us. Visit our website, call the helpline, listen to 
the podcast, or join us for a support meeting. I am so incredibly proud to be the patron 
of this charity, we have accomplished fantastic work over the last 23 years and touched 
the lives of so many. I am truly excited for the growth and what lies ahead as we 
continue to provide support, education, and awareness to thousands of people around 
Ireland. 

 Yours sincerely,

 

Ronan Keating
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The ongoing Covid  
Impact and Implications 

As the world began to open back up in 2021, the global pandemic still severely affected the Marie Keating Foundation and our ability to run all our 
education, support, and survivorship services. Nevertheless, we adapted to ever-changing times and through on line resources were able to do 
incredible work to support the community we love so dearly from the comfort of their own homes.

During 2021 we continued to hold many support and survivorship group meetings online via Zoom and continued to talk through WhatsApp groups. Our nursing 
outreach team hosted webinars to spread education and awareness about the signs of cancer to schools, companies, and other members of the community. 

Following the amazing success of the Concert4Cancer TV telethon in 2020, we hosted our second Concert4Cancer in mid August 2021 showcasing incredible 
artists and patient stories on Virgin Media One. The Foundation also launched its premier short film, The News, as part of our Lung Cancer Campaign in 
November. The News had an opening screening at the Stella Theatre and then was available to the general public through the Marie Keating website. We also put 
considerable time and effort into enhancing our podcast series, TalksCancer, where we discuss different types of cancer, share survivor stories, and provide vital 
information about cancer awareness and prevention. 

Even with much of the world operating online, the Marie Keating Foundation was able to get out on the road and school visits are 54 and workplaces 82 totaling 
136 schools and workplaces in person . Our team of nurses were also able to get out and about on our Mobile Units during the Summer to spread those important 
cancer awareness messaging across the nation in the west, south, and east. 

While during 2021 we were still challenged with the ongoing impacts of COVID-19 which affected cancer patients and their families so badly, COVID-19 did not 
slow down the Marie Keating Foundation. We still engaged on a personal level with the community that is so dear to us and had the pleasure of creating new and 
interesting ways to spread awareness while also being able to return to in-person interactions wherever possible. 
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COVID-19 Impact Report:
Impact in the community: Impact on Social Media: Impact on our support services:

Venues visited

Facebook Followers:  
32,586 representing  
3.85% growth

Positive Living support group:  

56 participants, 51% growth 

Survive and Thrive programme:  

59 participants

Number of Comfort Fund Grants Awarded: 

234

Number of people informed:  

6812

Number of online webinars hosted:  

82

BRCA Support Group online meetings: 

5 meetings, 69 people
221+ Cervical Check Group Meetings:  

12

Twitter followers:   
9,319 representing  
3.63% growth

Instagram followers:   
6,176 representing  
20.9% growth

Website visits:   
537,898

185

20

Companies Visited

82  
Companies

6,812  
Staff

Community Venues: 

49  
Venues

1019  
Individuals

Schools visited

54  
Schools

2832    
Students

Underserved groups: 

21  
Groups

233    
Individuals

People engaged with

10,931
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Number of Comfort Fund Grants Awarded: 

234
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Key Facts and Figures: 
Cancer in Ireland: 

Cancer Survivorship:

This year in Ireland an 
estimated 45,753 people will 
be diagnosed with cancer

incidence of cancer 
in Ireland is growing, 
but survival rates are 
improving every year.

Every year, 2,600 cases 
of breast cancer are 
diagnosed in Ireland, 
and 600 of these women 
will not survive

More people are coming 
out the other side of 
cancer with more than 
200,000 cancer survivors 
in Ireland alone.

Cancer is the most common 
cause of death in Ireland, 
accounting for almost 1 in 3 
deaths in 2018.

Breast cancer five-year 
survival is now 88% and 
survival for other cancers, 
such as prostate and 
testicular, is over 90%.

1 in 3

5 YEARSURVIVING 200,000

45,753 2,600
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How we have helped over the last 
five years:

Charity Income Expenditure on project and programme costs

2021 - €1,769,485 €1,356,327 or 76 %

2020 - €1,967,801 €1,005,555 or 51%

2019- €1,522,778 €1,345,288 or 87%

2018- €1,544,621 €1,199,724 of 78%

2017- €1,443,043 €1,144,585 or 79%

How Funds were spent:
In 2021, a total of €1,356,327  was spent on Charitable Activities 
which is 35% more than in 2020 and reflects the strong demand 
for our cancer services and nursing support. Even when our 
total income dropped compared to 2020, our spending on 
cancer services increased, showing our ability to become more 
efficient with allocating our funding. This expenditure on the 
Foundation’s Cancer Prevention, Support and Survivorship 
Services was spent as follows: 

• Cancer Information, Education & Awareness: 44%
• Community & Mobile Outreach: 43%
• Cancer Support & Survivorship Services: 13%

In 2021, a total of € 1,356,327 was spent on Charitable Services which is 76% of our total annual income and a 35% increase on 2020.
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Impact  
Report

“Community Information and 
Health Promotion Services

With ongoing COVID-19 restrictions and disruptions to 
school timetables, our nursing team was unable to visit 
as many schools, businesses and community groups 
in person as in previous years due to the COVID-19 
pandemic. Despite this the  Foundation’s nurses 
were able to  visit 185 venues in 2021, both through 
on-line delivery and in-person with COVID-19 safety 
precautions in place. During this time, they engaged 
with a total of 10,931 people about their health and 
cancer prevention. This is a decrease of almost 23% 
compared to the 13,435 people we engaged with in 
2020, although the number of venues visited increased.

The Foundation’s Corporate Wellness Workshop 
programme established in 2018 continued to grow as a 
result of the 2021 hybrid working schedule employed by 
many businesses, with a noticeable uptake in our online 
and pre-recorded webinar services. In 2021, MKF Nurses 
presented to 82 companies with over 6812 employees 
registering to take part in our online wellness webinars, 
an increase of 33% on last year. 

The Foundation’s nursing team 
made visits to 54 schools and 
colleges around Ireland in 2021 
sharing the importance of cancer 
awareness and prevention with 
over 2832 students.” 

24
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Public Awareness

In 2021, we carried out seven fully integrated awareness 
campaigns that offered information on the main forms of cancer 
in Ireland, including bladder, bowel, breast, lung, prostate, skin 
cancer and healthy living/cancer prevention. 

These campaigns ran across various social media channels, the 
Marie Keating Foundation website, www.mariekeating.ie, and 
included radio advertisements, videos, press and PR activity digital 
launches as well as one in-person launch at the Stella Theatre in 
Rathmines, Co. Dublin.

As the rate of in-person conversations fell, our digital footprint and 
our network of online supporters grew. The Foundation’s social 
media following expanded to include 32,586 Facebook fans, 9,319 
Twitter followers and 6,176 followers on Instagram.

Our website, www.mariekeating.ie, saw considerable growth in 
the 12 months of 2021, receiving a total of 537,898 visits to the 
website. The highest number of visitors in one month to the site 
was in October when we had over 83,500 hits in 31 days. 

32,586  
Facebook fans

5,108  
followers on Instagram

9,319  
Twitter followers
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Impact  
Report

After a short hiatus in 2020 due to COVID-19, we were able to 
reinstate our Comfort Fund service in early 2021 for those in dire 
financial need due to a cancer diagnosis. The Comfort Fund Grant 
service is entirely reliant on the Foundation’s own fundraising as it 
is not supported financially through statutory sources. In 2021, the 
Foundation was able to give 234 Comfort Fund Grants out of 270 
applications, despite our fall in income, to families all around the 
country. 

In 2020 €33,418 was allocated to grant recipients, helping a total 
number of 141 families. In 2021, a total of €99,500 was awarded 
to grant recipients, a positive incline from 2020, and the amount 
of each grant averaged at €425.21 per application. Comfort Fund 
grants were paid to recipients all over Ireland, with Co. Dublin being 
the most popular. 

With the number of Comfort Fund grants awarded  in 2021, it brings 
our total number of families receiving the grant in our history to an 
astounding 4,350, a statistic we are very proud of. 

Comfort Fund

was awarded to  
grant recipients

families supported 
with a Comfort 
Fund grant n 2021

Comfort Fund 
Grants awarded 
since 2014

 €99,500 

234

4,350

26
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In 2021, the Foundation was able to host four eight-week Survive 
and Thrive programmes online, supporting 78 participants around 
Ireland to make the transition to life after cancer a little easier. 
Whilst our participants missed the personal contact at the weekly 
workshops, online delivery meant that people from all around the 
country could avail of this very beneficial programme facilitated ted 
by our nurses and specialist contributors. 

Our Positive Living support group for people living with advanced 
cancer grew further  by an enormous 51% in 2021 as we added 
many new valued members to our support group meetings. These 
meetings continued to be hosted  at an increased frequency of 
bi-monthly meetings to accommodate the enormous need for 
this service. We were also able to expand this network to include 
a dedicated Positive Living service for men living with metastatic 
cancer in 2021. This smaller group met 5 times in 2021 and 
we hope to increase the membership of this important group 
throughout 2022.

Our Ask the Nurse help-line and contact-form also saw growth in 
2021, receiving 25 emails to our website with many patients in need 
of evidence-based information and guidance from our nursing team, 
whilst stay at home restrictions remained in place.

The Foundation continued to provide much-needed nursing support 
to patients and family members of our BRCA (Breast Cancer Gene) 
Support Group and the 221+ Cervical Check Group throughout 
2021 with 5and 12 meetings respectively.

Survivorship programmes: 

“ When I found the 
Marie Keating 
Foundation, and heard 
Aisling speak at their 
conference, I felt like 
I had finally found 
somewhere I fit in.” 
Jean O’Neill 
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How we have helped the cancer 
community:

How Funds were spent:
In 2021, a total of €1,356,327  was spent on Charitable Activities 
which is 35% more than in 2020 and reflects the strong demand 
for our cancer services and nursing support. Even when our 
total income dropped compared to 2020, our spending on 
cancer services increased, showing our ability to become more 
efficient with allocating our funding. This expenditure on the 
Foundation’s Cancer Prevention, Support and Survivorship 
Services was spent as follows: 

• Cancer Information, Education & Awareness 44%
• Community Information and Mobile Outreach 43%
• Cancer Support & Survivorship Services 13%

In 2021, a total of € 1,356,327 was spent on Charitable Services which is 76% of our total annual income and a 35% increase on 2020.

28

Cancer Information,  
Education &  
Awareness

Cancer Support &  
Survivorship Services

44%

43%
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Mobile Outreach
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Community Nursing Outreach

School 
54

Health Event
4

Community 
45

Underserved 
21

Corporate 
82

Total  
10,931=

People Reached

Type of Venue

Location  
Breakdown:

Annual Report 2021

East
• Cavan: 581
• Dublin: 5,950 
• Kildare: 66 
• Laois: 12
• Louth:  275
• Meath: 485
• Wexford: 727
• Offaly: 158
• Wicklow: 20

Total: 8,273

West
• Clare: 202
• Galway: 897
• Leitrim: 27
• Mayo: 298
• Roscommon: 42
• Sligo: 3
• Westmeath: 40

Total: 1,509

South
• Cork: 690
• Kerry: 31
• Limerick: 146
• Tipperary: 264
• Waterford: 17

Total: 1,149
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Some Highlights of 2021 
2021 was an extremely challenging year for our services and fundraising efforts, but amongst the chaos, our 
team were able to meet the needs of those living with and beyond cancer, at every step. Through the hard work 
and dedication of every member of the Marie Keating Foundation team, we are delighted to present some of our 
highlights for 2021: 

Good Governance awards 2021 
We were honoured to have been named Good Governance Award winners for 
our 2020 Annual Report, coming first in our category amongst some amazing 
institutions (charities with an annual income of between €1m and €5m). We are 
immensely proud of this achievement as it further clarifies the importance of 
strong corporate governance as a key focus of the Foundation and highlights our 
commitment to attaining the highest standards of accountability and transparency 
so that the public and our valued supporters truly can trust us.

Concert4Cancer Online Stream:
In 2021, we expanded upon our 2020 Concert4Cancer event and hosted 
a second televised concert as well as a  stream of the event. The concert 
took place in August on Virgina Media and the streaming event was on the 
30th of December. In addition to some more amazing stars from the world 
of entertainment a number of our patient ambassadors spoke about how the 
Foundation had helped them through their difficult journey, bringing higher 
levels of awareness of the work the Marie Keating Foundation does for the Irish 
community.
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Development of Men’s Positive Living Service 
Due to an increased demand for our Positive Living service, we were able to 
extend the reach of these very important support meetings  to launch our very 
first dedicated Positive Living network for men living with metastatic cancer. 
Established during our Blue September month when we focus on Men’s Health, 
we now have a core group of dedicated service users, and these monthly 
meetings continue to grow.

Launch of Marie Keating Foundation Talks Cancer 
Podcast Series
In 2021 the Marie Keating Foundation launched its first ever podcast series called  
Talks Cancer. It featured an 8- part series about melanoma launched in the summer 
of 2021 as well as a Lung Cancer 4 - part series launched in November as part of 
our Lung Cancer Awareness Month. The podcast has been a great success and has 
had over 2,100 listeners to date, with a nomination in the inaugural Irish Podcast 
Awards taking place in September 2022. 

Further development of BRCA Support Services
2021 saw a boost of over 24% of those of those availing of the Foundation’s 
BRCA Support services, the only of its kind in Ireland. Due to our commitment 
and dedication to this community and those affected by be genetic cancers, 
we were invited by the HSE to give our input to the BRCA Needs Assessment 
Steering Committee being chaired by the National Cancer Control Programme. 
It is important that we advocate for the unique position of this community  as we 
begin to bring about true, national change in our health services and the support 
available for those affected by a BRCA gene alteration. 
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Social Inclusion Work
In 2021 the Marie Keating Foundation made it a goal to broaden the community we serve by 
providing cancer education, awareness, and prevention knowledge to Traveller and Syrian 
communities here in Ireland. Our team of nurses presented information to these communities, 
and with the help of translators, were able to translate our presentations into Arabic to make 
the information and resources more accessible for both men and women. We intend to further 
expand our work with other refugees in 2022 and  look forward to connecting with a broader 
range of people throughout Ireland  in the coming years. 

People served: 233
Presentations given: 7

The News Film
The Marie Keating Foundation was proud to present our first-ever short film 
production, The News as part of our November Lung cancer Awareness Campaign. 
This film follows the story of main character Colm, who is diagnosed with lung 
cancer. The purpose of the film was to showcase that with an early diagnosis, 
lung cancer can be curable. With the help of renowned director Brian O’Malley, 
lung cancer patients and advocates, we were able to bring this story to life at the   
campaign launch event at the Stella Theatre, Dublin. 
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SurvivorshipSupportPrevention

Prevention/ Awareness 

Mobile Outreach

Corporate Wellness

Schools’ Cancer Awareness 
Programme

Awareness Campaigns

Support 

Comfort Fund

BRCA Support Group

Virtual Support Hub

Social Inclusion Hub

Survivorship 
 
Survive & Thrive Programme

Surviveandthrive.ie

Positive Living

Back to Work after Cancer

Marie Keating Foundation Services 
along the Cancer Journey 
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Community Information 
Services 2021 
Community & Mobile Unit Information Services

Since The Marie Keating Foundation’s inception in 1998, our Community 
and Mobile Information Services have been a cornerstone of the work we 
do throughout Ireland. These services help to raise awareness of all the 
common cancers affecting men and women in Ireland and promote healthy 
lifestyle choices that reduce the risk of cancer.

In 2021, our reach and engagement with members of the communities across 
the country was limited due to COVID-19 restrictions. Over the 12-month 
period, the Foundation was still able to visit over 185, workplace, school and 
community settings to conduct our general health, cancer prevention and 
awareness programmes for over 10,931 individuals

Due to our learnings from 2020, we were able to continue to put safety 
measures in place to ensure that when we were able to visit new locations, 
our mobile units were not only safe for those stepping on board, but for 
our experienced community and oncology nurses who carry out this vital 
service. 

The ultimate goal of this vital information service is to educate people on 
how to make informed lifestyle and health choices in their everyday life that 
can lower their cancer risk, while increasing awareness of cancer symptoms 
and screening programmes.

It is our hope that in 2022, our team of nurses will be able to fully resume their 
community nursing work to continue to provide a safe and private space for 
people to voice their concerns or questions about cancer.
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The Mobile Unit Visits provide: 

• Healthy lifestyle advice and tips on how to reduce cancer risk  
•  Information and registration details on national screening 

programmes (BreastCheck; CervicalCheck or BowelScreen) 
•  Booklets and information leaflets about the signs and symptoms 

of all the common cancers
•  Smoking cessation advice as well as general health checks 

through our Smokerlyzer® test and Health Education aids 
•  Oncology or community nurse available for one to one 

conversations about cancer 

In many cases, our nurses are also invited to give talks, 
presentations, and workshops in community settings to groups 
around the country.
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Corporate Wellness Programme 

As part of our Corporate Wellness Programme, the Marie Keating Foundation nursing team regularly conducts 
workshops and presentations about cancer prevention and awareness in corporate workplaces across the 
country. 

During the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, the Corporate Wellness service expanded to offer bespoke cancer 
prevention and awareness presentations through live and pre-recorded online webinars to ensure that no matter 
the workplace, people across Ireland had access to our life-saving information, and our aim for 2021 was to build 
on this progress.

This  service, lead by our Senior Oncology Nurse, Bernie Carter, presented seminars in over 82 workplaces, both 
office based and digital, and spoke to 6,812 employees about the importance of cancer awareness and early 
detection.

In 2021, we were able to expand the range of topics presented on to create a more inclusive and dedicated 
experience. Over the last year, our team hosted workshops on a variety of topics, including workshops specific 
to each of the most common cancers (skin, breast, prostate, lung, bowel, cervical and mouth, head and neck 
cancer) as well as Your Health Your Choice workshops focused on healthy lifestyle choices to reduce cancer risk, 
dedicated Men’s/Women’s health workshops, and webinars on how to manage the difficult transition of going 
back to work after a cancer diagnosis.  

Every presentation demonstrates the facts, risk factors, symptoms, treatments available, and screening 
information, while also providing those in attendance with the resources to expand their knowledge once the 
webinar ends via the Marie Keating Foundation virtual resource hub and information library. 

These workshops have been devised under the guidance of the Marie Keating Foundation’s nursing team with 
the following aims: 

•  Help employees understand the importance and value of making the right lifestyle choices to reduce their risk 
of cancer. 

•  Educate employees on the main risk factors and signs and symptoms of common cancers.

•  Give employees an awareness of how to check themselves and what to look for in order to spot cancer early.

•  Support employers’ ability to protect their workers’ health in the workplace, ensuring healthier employees, a 
more engaged workforce, and decreased absenteeism.

38



39Annual Report 2021

Eileen was brilliant at all three of our 
events. She was super professional, 
engaging with staff and from our 
point of view as organisers, she was a 
pleasure to deal with”  
 
Kevin Healy, Cork County Council  

“
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Schools’ Cancer Awareness Programme 

Our School’s Cancer Awareness Programme (SCAP) is one of our services hit hardest 
by the COVID-19 pandemic.

Due to the variety of disruptions to school timetables in the last 12 months, the 
Foundation’s nursing team has done its best to continue to provide bespoke cancer 
awareness and prevention programmes to students across the country. 

Be this through in-person talks, or webinars, our nursing team continued to build on 
our school’s services to provide young people with the information and tools they 
need to live a healthy lifestyle to help reduce their risk of cancer, as well as cancer 
awareness allowing them to spot symptoms of the disease in its earliest stages. 

The CAP programme also provides students with a better insight into how those 
living with cancer experience the world around them and how treatment affects a 
person both physically and mentally. This helps students to feel more comfortable 
and knowledgeable in situations involving cancer, enabling them to help and support 
others more effectively. 

Students are provided with a safe environment both in school and online via our secure 
weblinks to openly discuss their questions and concerns regarding this disease with 
our specialised nursing team. 

By making cancer ‘less frightening by enlightening’, the programme hopes to engage 
students with age-appropriate, interactive and informative material. Complementary 
resources are also provided that integrate information and communications technology 
(ICT) as CAP recognises the important role e-learning plays in the lives of our students 
today. 

The nine-module programme may be delivered as a part of the Social, Personal and 
Health Education curriculum and is available to all secondary schools or youth group 
settings free of charge. In 2021, our nurses delivered CAP presentations at 54 schools 
and colleges across Ireland, sharing its life-saving message with over 2,832 students.
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Social Inclusion Work

With thanks to Deloitte, our nursing team, led by Director of Nursing Services, 
Helen Forristal was able to create meaningful partnerships with members of 
the Syrian and Travelling communities in Ireland during a time of immense 
change.

Through our work with Pavee Point and the Roscommon and Offaly Local 
Development networks, we were able to conduct 7 cancer awareness and 
prevention seminars, both in person and online, for members of these 
underserved groups. 

Focusing on cancer topics of particular interest to those within these groups, 
we presented 3 information seminars in Arabic for a Syrian audience, on 
cervical, breast and prostate cancer, and 4 presentations in simple English, 
focusing on bowel, prostate, cervical and ovarian cancer designed specially 
for those within the travelling community.

As a part of this work, we were also able to create 7 printable and 
downloadable cancer information leaflets, curated in tandem with our 
awareness and prevention presentation to meet the needs and specifications 
of these communities.

All of these resources as well as recordings of our online presentations 
are available to view on the Marie Keating Foundation’s website, under 
our social inclusion hub. As part of our strategic direction of focusing on 
underserved communities, it is our hope for 2022 to continue to build on this 
solid foundation of resources and disseminate them to similar groups around 
the country to maximise these efforts and to ensure no one in Ireland is left 
without the tools to spot cancer at its earliest stages. 
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Connecting with our community 
How we connect with our community:
With the ongoing impact of COVID-19, 2021 continued to bring its unique 
challenges to the charity sector and the Marie Keating Foundation was not 
exempt from these difficulties. Once again, our strong connection with our 
community of cancer patients and survivors, as well as our incredible donors and 
supporters enabled us to ensure that we were able to meet the needs of these 
communities at every step. 

Communication and affinity became one of our top priorities, keeping our 
supporters and key stakeholders abreast of all our awareness, support, and 
fundraising initiatives and how they could help. In doing this we have been able 
to connect with our community and families across Ireland like never before. 
These are just some of the ways the Foundation has remained connected while 
staying apart: 

Social Media:
Social media has been a valuable tool in not just promoting and raising 
awareness of our new, adapted digital services, but also in keeping our 
communities, especially those most vulnerable, connected while we are apart. 
Over the course of 2021, our online communities grew allowing us to now reach 
over 48,000 people across our social media platforms. We make a point to post 
and engage with our audiences on a regular basis to ensure our followers receive 
the most up-to-date information on how to be aware, preventative, and educated 
on various forms of cancer. 

Monthly Newsletter:
Established in 2019 our monthly e-newsletter means we stay connected to our 
supporters and ambassadors. Connecting with our supporters and ambassadors 
is vital to keep them informed about what the Marie Keating Foundation is up to 
across our awareness campaigns, services, and fundraising initiatives. During 
COVID-19, it has become an important tool to inform our supporters about how 
we have used our voice to speak on behalf of our community to raise awareness 
of issues of importance, including our support of patient advocate John Wall’s 
campaign to increase automatic entitlement to a medical card for those facing 
a terminal cancer diagnosis, or our support of Siobhan Freeney’s advocacy to 
ensure that Breast Density is recognised as a risk factor for breast cancer. 

Awareness Campaigns:
Each year, with the help of our corporate partners, we are able to highlight the 
warning signs of some of Ireland’s most common cancers including bowel, 
breast, skin, prostate and lung cancer in creative and engaging campaigns. 
In 2021, we were able to add a campaign for bladder cancer and increase 
awareness to the Irish public about its signs and symptoms. We were fortunate 
to have some exceptional partners help to amplify our message of cancer 
prevention and detection.
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Cancer Awareness Campaigns
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Smoking
This Your Health Your Choice pillar aims to not only provide 
information about smoking being linked to several types 
of cancers but to also provide information and resources 
to help with quitting smoking. Smoking is responsible for 
up to 30% of cancer diagnoses, and research shows that 
smoking levels in Ireland have increased due to the global 
pandemic. Smoking is a cause of many cancers, including 
Ireland’s cancer with the lowest rate of survival, lung cancer. 
To reduce your risk of cancer, it is recommended you quit 
smoking immediately, for help quitting there are resources 
on the Marie Keating Website, www.mariekeating.ie, or you 
can contact the National Smokers Quitline for free at 1800 
201 203, Freetext QUIT to 50100, or visit www.quit.ie.

Weight and Diet
While it may not be widely known, a healthy and balanced 
diet is a key aspect of  cancer prevention. By minimising 
consumption of unhealthy fats, salts, and sugars, and 
increasing fruit and vegetable servings, cancer risk can be 
reduced. The global pandemic has caused lifestyle changes 
that have led to one-third of the Irish public gaining weight, 
which is directly linked to breast and bowel cancer. In 2021, 
the Marie Keating Foundation encouraged the people of 
Ireland to start the new year off with a commitment to their 
health and wellbeing by eating well and getting a proper 
amount of exercise. 

Exercise
Regular exercise is a vital part of maintaining not only 
physical health but also mental health. A simple 30 minutes 
a day helps control body weight, boosts the internal immune 
system, and reduces risk of cancer. Exercise does not always 
have to be a traditionally athletic activity, actions as simple 
as vacuuming, a brisk walk, or even gardening all count as 
physical activity. If it raises your heart rate and makes you 
slightly out of breath, it counts as exercise.  

SunSmart
While skin cancer is the most preventable type of cancer, it 
is the most common in Ireland. By following the SunSmart 
code outlined in the Your Health, Your Choice campaign, 
the risk of skin cancer can be reduced, and time spent 
outdoors can be more enjoyable. By covering up when 
outdoors, wearing sunscreen with SPF 30+ and quality UV 
protection, seeking shade when the sun is strongest, and 
avoiding sunbeds, the risk of skin cancer diminishes greatly. 
In addition to being aware of sun exposure, being aware of 
what is normal for you when it comes to freckles and moles 
is vital to making note of changes in your skin. If you do 
notice unusual changes on your skin, be proactive andseek 
advice from your doctor or skin care professional. 

Alcohol
Ireland is a leading nation for binge drinking culture, and 
research shows that due to the COVID-19 pandemic 1 in 8 
people say they are drinking more than before the pandemic. 
Breast, liver, bowel, and mouth, head and neck cancer are 
all linked to a habit of heavy drinking. When it comes to 
alcohol, less is best, but none is better still. Reducing alcohol 
consumption has a direct correlation to reducing cancer risk. 
It is also important to note that recommended alcohol units 
per week are a suggestion, not a target to hit. 

Vaccines
Being vaccinated protects against many diseases and 
infections, which in turn provides higher rates of protection 
from certain cancers. In Ireland, 90% of cervical cancer 
diagnoses are directly linked to HPV. Boys and girls have the 
ability to be vaccinated against HPV, which greatly reduces 
the risk of developing cervical cancer or another form of 
cancer. Being vaccinated is a quick and effortless way to 
create lasting protection against preventable cancers. 

Screening
Screening is a preventative measure taken by healthy people 
to detect cancer in its earliest stages. In Ireland, there are 
screening services in place for Breast, Cervical, and Bowel 
cancer. Cancer screenings can be vital in catching and 
preventing cancer before it becomes more severe, to check 
your eligibility for various screening services visit www.
screeningservice.ie.

Your Health, Your Choice
In 2021 the Marie Keating Foundation launched a new iteration of this campaign to highlight the importance of positive lifestyle choices and the implications they can have on our 
personal health in preventing certain cancers now and in the future. This came into sharp focus as we entered 2021 during our third lockdown in nine months with our mental and 
physical health all vulnerable to the unseen consequences of lockdown and prolonged isolation. The campaign included seven key lifestyle pillars, two more than the previous 
2020 campaign. In 2021 we introduced the importance of vaccines and screening as key lifestyle pillars that are instrumental in preventing cancer when properly cared for. Since 
2016, the “Your Health, Your Choice” campaign has been a fundamental part of the Marie Keating Foundation’s cancer prevention messaging services in our community and 
corporate nursing services. The Foundation is proud of the program’s growth from year to year, including the 2021 additions of two new key lifestyle pillars. 
The seven key areas examined are as follows:  



47Annual Report 2021

• Smoking levels have increased amongst smokers, with two-thirds (66%) of those who smoke claiming they 
are now smoking more per day than before the pandemic. Smoking is one of the top contributors to lung 
cancer, Ireland’s leading cancer killer. 

Smoking

• Ireland is a leading nation for binge drinking culture, and research shows that due to the COVID-19 pandemic 1 in 8 people say they are 
drinking more than before the pandemic. Breast, liver, bowel, and mouth, head and neck cancer are all linked to a habit of heavy drinking. 
When it comes to alcohol, less is best, but none is better still. Reducing alcohol consumption has a direct correlation to reducing cancer risk. 
It is also important to note that recommended alcohol units per week are a suggestion, not a target to hit. 

• Being vaccinated protects against many diseases and infections, which in turn provides higher rates of protection from certain cancers. In 
Ireland, 90% of cervical cancer diagnoses are directly linked to HPV. Boys and girls have the ability to be vaccinated against HPV, which greatly 
reduces the risk of developing cervical cancer or another form of cancer. Being vaccinated is a quick and effortless way to create lasting 
protection against preventable cancers. 

• Screening is a preventative measure taken by healthy people to detect cancer in its earliest stages. In Ireland, there are screening services 
in place for Breast, Cervical, and Bowel cancer. Cancer screenings can be vital in catching and preventing cancer before it becomes more 
severe, to check your eligibility for various screening services visit www.screeningservice.ie.

Alcohol

Vaccines

Screening

• Just 30 minutes a day of moderate exercise can greatly reduce the risk of cancer. Activities as simple as walking, vacuuming, and dancing all 
count as forms of exercise, and are proven to reduce the risk of breast, bowel, and cervical cancer. 

Exercise 

• Being overweight and having an unhealthy diet has been linked to up to 40% of some cancers. Over the past number of 
months and as a direct result of our lifestyle decisions since lockdown, one-third (32%) of us say that we have put on weight. 

Weight and Diet

SPF 50

UVA   UVB
• Skin cancer is Ireland’s most common form of cancer but also one of the most treatable forms. By being aware of skin type, moles and 

freckles, and sun exposure, the risk of skin cancer can be greatly reduced. 

SunSmart
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2021 was an increasingly difficult year in terms of the prevention and early detection of 
bowel cancer.

The Marie Keating Foundation’s bowel cancer awareness campaign once again aimed to engage 
with Irish men and women to increase awareness of the early warning signs of bowel cancer. 
During European Colorectal Awareness Month weencouraged them to speak to their GP if they 
had any concerns.

In a series of awareness videos and social media posts both paid and organic as well as a national 
radio ad, this campaign sparked a conversation amongst our target audience. Throughout the 
campaign, our audience learned more about bowel cancer, who is most at risk, early signs and 
symptoms and the importance of screening for early detection.

A simple but effect communications plan was designed to help launch this awareness campaign, 
kindly supported by Servier Laboratories Ireland. 

Following on from the success of the 2020 campaign, a key focus for this year’s activities was to 
encourage men and women to engage with the idea of bowel cancer prevention and awareness. 
Through social media posts, engaging online videos, and the repurposing and distribution of 
a bowel cancer awareness radio ad on Newstalk Radio, those aged between 60 – 69 were 
encouraged to register to receive BowelScreen’s at home test while also keeping a close eye on 
their bodies to recognise changes when and if they occur. 

Each year in Ireland, over 2,935 men and women in Ireland are diagnosed with bowel cancer, and 
through the updated and revamped bowel cancer pages on our website, www.mariekeating.ie, 
we were able to make the information linked to bowel cancer diagnosis, treatment and recovery 
more accessible than ever. 

Bowel Cancer Awareness

Bowel or colorectal cancer is Ireland’s third most common 
cancer, affecting both men and women. 

Social Media 

 270,434

Website Views 

 13,326

People Reached:

People Reached:

Media Reach    

483,000

People Reached:
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Marie Keating Foundation’s melanoma skin cancer awareness campaign, kindly 
supported by Novartis, aimed to engage the men and women of Ireland and increase 
awareness of the early warning signs, diagnostic process, and support services 
available to those affected by skin cancer and melanoma skin cancer in Ireland. 

To achieve this aim, we launched our first ever podcast, the Marie Keating Foundation 
Talks CancerPodcast, and this first  season focused on #TalkingMelanoma. The podcast 
was a great success, with over 1,600 listeners during the summer months.
Throughout the campaign, our audience learned more about melanoma skin cancer 
through testimonials from experts in the field as well as those with lived experience of 
melanoma. This presented audiences with a well-rounded image of what melanoma is, 
raised awareness about the disease as well as provided support and insight for those on 
a melanoma journey.

Through paid and organic social media posts and extensive media outreach, the people of 
Ireland between the ages of 18 and 65+ were encouraged to tune in to the podcast every 
two weeks to hear from experts in melanoma about the steps they could take to reduce 
their risk, as well as hear about the lived implications of melanoma first-hand.

Skin Cancer Awareness

Each year in Ireland, over 13,000 people are 
diagnosed with some form of skin cancer. Skin 
cancer is one of the most preventable forms of 
cancers and when detected early, is very treatable. 
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Social Media 

516,206

People Reached:

Media Reach   

4,778,114

People Reached:

Website Views 

14,262

People Reached:

In addition to the podcast launch, the Marie Keating Foundation continued to 
spread awareness about the harm of the sun’s rays through advertising ways to 
be SunSmart and keep yourself protected. All you must do is follow the 5 S’s.

•  Slip on sun-protective clothing that covers as much of your body 
exposed to the sun as possible

•  Slop on sunscreen with a factor 30 plus and good UV protection at 
least 20 minutes before going outdoors. Reapply every two hours 
when outdoors or more often if perspiring or swimming

•  Slap on a broad-brimmed hat that shades your face, neck, and ears

• Seek shade.

• Slide on sunglasses.
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Building on the success of the 2020 campaign, the Marie Keating Foundation once again marked Blue September by raising awareness 
of prostate cancer in their Stand Up For Your Prostate campaign, kindly supported by Astellas.

 The campaign aimed to empower Irish men to be more aware of the risks of prostate cancer and be more open when discussing their health. 
The campaign urged men to watch for symptoms relating to prostate health, talk with family and friends about prostate health, and act by 
going to see their general practitioner if they have prostate health concerns. 

Following on from the success of the previous two “Stand Up” campaigns, a key objective of the 2021 Stand Up for Your Prostate campaign 
focused on sharing life experiences of those who survived prostate cancer. With the help of four ambassadors, Colm Murphy, Raymond Poole, 
Thomas Devlin, and Kevin Doyle, the Marie Keating Foundation was able to encourage men to get their PSA tested when they turned 50, or 
45 with a family history of prostate cancer. 

Throughout the month of September, the foundation launched social media posts, radio ads, a video showcasing the ambassador’s stories, 
and reintroduced the Stand Up For Your Prostate Blue Man Pin from previous year’s campaigns. The aim of the pin was to create a symbol 
that men would be comfortable wearing & embracing, showing support and solidarity for prostate cancer patients and survivors. Throughout 
the month of September, over 675 pins were purchased from the Marie Keating Foundation website. 

Prostate Cancer Awareness

Research shows that one in eight men will be diagnosed with prostate cancer at some 
point in their lives. The good news is, that when detected early, prostate cancer has a 
93% survival rate. 

What I would say to someone who has just received a 
diagnosis is that they shouldn’t let the cancer define 
them – you are still you”  
 
Gerry Bruen, prostate cancer survivor 

“

Social Media 

 419,384

Website Views 

 2,499

People Reached:

People Reached:

Media Reach    

3,208,075 

People Reached:
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October is an incredibly special time for us here at the Foundation. Having lost their mother Marie to 
breast cancer in 1998, the Keating family set up the Marie Keating Foundation to ensure that families 
across Ireland had the information they need to detect cancer at its earliest stages.

For Breast Cancer Awareness Month 2021, the Foundation wanted to create a space where women with all 
experiences of breast cancer had the space and the time to share their unique journeys of living with or beyond 
breast cancer. 

Continuing from the first #NotJustPink campaign, the Marie Keating Foundation’s Breast Cancer Isn’t Just Pink 
campaign aimed to acknowledge the unique experience each breast cancer patient goes through and encourage 
survivors and patients alike to express their experience with the disease to raise awareness.

This year, with the help of four ambassadors, Carly Mahedy, Tracy Bennett, Barbara King, and Pascaline Fresneau, 
we were able to partner with Fleetwood Paints and renowned Irish interior designer Roisin Lafferty, to create 
unique paint colours to represent each of the women’s individual journeys with breast cancer in order to create a 
moving and impactful campaign video. 

In addition to a campaign video showcasing the stories of breast cancer survivors and patients, the Marie Keating 
Foundation created an organic and promoted social media campaign, as well as a “BuzzFeed style” quiz about 
breast cancer, all in an effort to raise awareness and support for each person’s unique journey battling breast 
cancer. 

Breast Cancer Awareness

One in nine  women will be diagnosed with breast cancer in their 
lifetime. Marie Keating was one of those women.

Social Media 

 674,220

Website Views 

 5,804

People Reached:

People Reached:

Media Reach    

5,290,468

People Reached:



How to do a  
self-check
 

•  Check your breasts on the same date 
once a month

•  Look for changes like puckering, 
redness, or changes to your nipples

•  Feel for changes by feeling your 
breast in circular clockwise motions 
moving towards the centre

•  Check under your arm for changes/
lumps

•  Speak to your GP without delay if you 
notice any changes in your body
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Lung cancer has one of the lowest survival rates of all the common cancers, as it is often 
detected too late.  

Continuing from our first Big Check Up campaign in 2020, last November, the Marie Keating 
Foundation aimed to subvert the perception of lung cancer as a death sentence and make people 
aware that when detected early, lung cancer can be treated, and even cured. We did this through 
an innovative short film called The News which shared the story of a lung cancer diagnosis with an 
unexpected ending. 

An integrated communications campaign was designed to help launch the Marie Keating Foundation’s 
The News short film at the Stella Theatre in Rathmines, as a part of the second iteration of the Big 
Check Up campaign, kindly supported by Astra Zeneca, Bristol Myers Squibb, MSD and Roche. 

We also continued our Big Check Up messaging throughout the month of November to encourage 
people to get to know the warning signs of lung cancer, contact their GP if they had any concerns, 
and encourage their family and friends to do the same. 

In addition to The News film, the Marie Keating Foundation updated the website to highlight 
information and directional links to lung cancer resources, posted organic and paid social media 
posts, ran a four-week national and regional radio campaign, and launched the Talking Lung Cancer 
Podcast. As an offshoot of our lung cancer awareness activity this November, we were able to 
produce a four-part podcast series that explored the facts about lung cancer in Ireland, how it is 
diagnosed, treated, and how a lung cancer diagnosis impacts your life. We had over 420 listeners 
in 2021. 

Lung Cancer Awareness
Lung cancer is the fourth most common cancer in Ireland 
affecting over 2,749 men and women in Ireland each year. 
Due to low symptom awareness and a stigma associated 
with it, survival rates remain low at just 20%  

Social Media 

 449,166 

Website Views 

 5,811

People Reached:

People Reached:

Media Reach    

1,273,180

People Reached:
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Marie Keating Foundation’s bladder cancer awareness campaign, supported by Roche, aimed to 
engage with Irish men and women to increase awareness of the early warning signs of bladder 
cancer during the month of May.

Following on from the awareness garnered during the Foundation’s 2020 campaign, a key focus for this 
year of activity was to encourage men to engage with the idea of bladder cancer prevention and awareness. 
Through paid and organic social media posts and extensive media outreach, those aged over 50 were 
encouraged to take note of the Bladder Health Code, get to know the warning signs, and speak to their 
GP if they had any concerns. 

We promoted our campaign by engaging online infographics and images across an array of social media 
platforms. In addition to social media, the Marie Keating Foundation held a media day with Davy Fitzgerald, 
our campaign spokesperson, leading to extensive outreach across Ireland. 

Bladder Cancer Awareness 
Each year in Ireland, 491 men and women are diagnosed with 
bladder cancer. Sadly, around 222 people die from the disease 
each year. But this doesnt have to be the case. When detected 
early, bladder cancer is very treatable.  

Social Media 

 407,361 

Website Views 

 2,284

People Reached:

People Reached:

Media Reach    

3,873,429

People Reached:
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Some of the days we specifically marked in 2021 highlighting important cancer awareness messaging

World Cancer Day - Feb 4th

2021’s World Cancer Day theme was ‘close the care gap’, which shed 
light on the cancer care inequalities in our society and aimed to shorten 
the gap to ensure everyone has access to timely and effective cancer 
information and care services. On February 4th, the Marie Keating 
Foundation, in partnership with Pavee Point Traveller & Roma Centre 
came together to highlight the enduring barriers that affect members of 
the Travelling community from receiving cancer support and education. 
Outside of World Cancer Day, the foundation has continued to provide 
educational resources, workshops, and online guides to the Traveller 
community to further raise awareness and education levels about 
cancer prevention and support. 

Mouth, Head, and Neck – world head and neck 
day in July

In 2021 the Marie Keating Foundation launched the Mouth, Head, and 
Neck Awareness campaign. This mini campaign included a presentation 
from one of MKF’s nurses about the signs and symptoms of mouth 
head and neck cancers as well as detailing ways prevention can be 
increased through a healthy lifestyle. The launch of this campaign was 
a huge success, and we are looking forward to growing it in the coming 
years. 

As part of DeCare Dental's commitment to Health and

Wellbeing, we would like to share some information

about Mouth Head and Neck Cancer Awareness Day,

which takes place, Wednesday, September 15th.

Mouth, 

Head & Neck

Cancer

Awareness

DeCare Dental Insurance Ireland DAC trading as DeCare, DeCare Dental & DeCare Vision is regulated by the Central Bank of Ireland

www.decare.ie/cancer-awareness

Awareness Days
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Men’s Health Week

In June 2021 the Marie Keating Foundation celebrated 
Men’s Health Week with the theme of ‘Making the 
Connections’, which encourages not only men but 
everyone to check in and check up on themselves and 
the males around them. By hosting wellness webinars 
and promoting the importance of living a healthy lifestyle 
through the Marie Keating Foundation website and social 
media, the importance of men’s health was spread. Men’s 
Health Week 2021 included the launch of our Men’s 
Wellness Webinar Series, a free four-part wellness series 
focusing on men’s health. We were joined each week, 
beginning on the 15th of June, by experts in the fields 
of men’s wellness and covered topics like mindfulness, 
physical activity, the resources available for men in their 
own community and much more.

HPV Awareness Week 

During the 2021 HPV Awareness Week, the Marie 
Keating Foundation promoted prevention and awareness 
using our social media channels. Information regarding 
the importance of cervical cancer screening and advice 
about the life-saving HPV vaccine was shared with the 
Irish public. During HPV awareness week our team 
advocated for a catch-up vaccine programme in schools, 
highlighting the importance to parents of ensuring their 
sons and daughters receive the HPV vaccine.

Cervical Cancer Awareness Week

In addition to HPV awareness week, in 2021 the Marie 
Keating Foundation specifically acknowledged the risks 
of cervical cancer and hosted an awareness week to 
spread information about prevention and detection. 
The foundation encouraged women to attend their 
regular cervical screening, as there can be no symptoms 
of cervical cancer. In addition to attending cervical 
screenings, MKF also promoted the importance of 
receiving an HPV vaccination, as more than 99% of 
cases of cervical cancer are caused by HPV. 
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Letter from Michelle 
I’d said since the start that I never wanted to let cancer define me so I 
understood your concern. Nervously that first night I logged on and as 
we went through our stories one by one, the tears came, I sobbed and 
blubbed my way through that first session. It was the first time I’d let 
myself cry over my diagnosis and the tears came from nowhere as soon 
as I opened my mouth.

I see now it was the exact release that I needed. Helen phoned me the 
following day to ensure that I was okay. The following five weeks I found a 
group of amazing women who understood me, sympathised when needed 
and made me stop feeling sorry for myself when needed to. I found my 
strength and my voice again during those weeks. I honestly can’t explain 
how it works Paul but I’ve found me again through the Survive and Thrive. I 
was so lost when I started the course, I refused to talk about my diagnosis 
and what had happened and that was eating me up inside. I just didn’t 
want to cause you anymore hurt than I already had but by talking to others 
I’ve been able to process it all.

Love always,
Michelle

Cancer  
Support &  
Survivorship  
Services
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Comfort  
Fund
The Marie Keating Foundation’s Comfort Fund was created to provide financial assistance to 
those who find themselves struggling financially as a result of a cancer diagnosis. 

Being diagnosed with cancer can be a stressful time filled with uncertainty and emotional distress, 
so the Foundation’s Comfort Fund aims to contribute what we can to help ease the burden of cancer 
related expenses. 

Expenses such as medical costs like consultant fees and medications, additional expenses from 
hospital travel, parking for appointments and extended leave from work can all mount up and leave 
many families struggling financially. In the midst of a cost of living crisis here in Ireland, the comfort 
fund has never been more important to our community. The demand for financial help during one’s 
cancer journey is only growing, and with our Comfort Fund service we help to ease these worries. 
Furthermore, financial worries like these during an already stressful time can have a detrimental impact 
on your cancer journey, and so, we do all we can to be able to help lighten the burden for our cancer 
patients. 

To show our commitment to best in class care, and to reduce our carbon footprint, in 2021, all Comfort 
Fund Applications were processed through the Foundation’s new online portal, transitioning this 
service to a paper free, secure online network.

This fund has been operating successfully since 2014, and all grants awarded by the Foundation have 
come from funds raised by the Foundation. In recent years and as an aftershock from the COVID-19 
pandemic, the demand for assistance and the number of applications received by the Foundation has 
increased exponentially. Whilst the Fund had to be suspended in 2020, we were able to reinstate it in 
2021 and allocated a limited budget to those patient applicants who were most in need. 

In 2021, the Comfort Fund grant received 270 applications for assistance. However, even with a 
limited budget and increasingly challenging circumstances, the Marie Keating Foundation was able to 
provide financial assistance to 234 families across Ireland, donating a collective €99,500. 
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The Foundation have done just amazing 
things in the background for so many 
families and individuals with the Comfort 
Fund but by its very nature it costs a lot 
of money to provide and unfortunately, 
the last couple of years has decimated 
fun raising efforts right across the 
charitable sector. But the impact it’s 
having on cancer patients and their 
families is huge. There’s a lot of people 
out there, unfortunately, that cannot 
afford to have cancer, but they have.”  
 
John Wall patient advocate  

“
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BRCA Support  
Group
Launched at the 2019 annual BRCA Conference, the work done through the Foundation’s 
BRCA Peer-to-Peer volunteer support services has only gone from strength to strength. 
In 2021, the team at the Marie Keating Foundation received 72 BRCA queries from people 
across Ireland, seeking advice, information, and support to help them on their BRCA 
journey. 

Supported by Pfizer, this BRCA Peer to Peer service is delivered by our specialised nursing team 
and our ten trained BRCA Peer-to-Peer support volunteers.  This service provides support and 
information for people in Ireland with a BRCA1 or BRCA2 alteration. The ten wonderful Peer-to-
Peer support volunteers have all tested positive for a BRCA1 or BRCA2 alteration and learned to 
navigate their diagnosis and now want to provide support to others on a similar path.  

Testing positive for a BRCA gene alteration can be a confusing and lonely time for people. 
Therefore, to help cater for this need, the Marie Keating Foundation team established the BRCA 
Online Support Group Meetings. Six free online support group meetings are provided each 
year for people with a BRCA1 or BRCA2 alteration, three between January and June and three 
between September and December. A Marie Keating Foundation specialist trained nurse and a 
Peer-to-Peer support volunteer facilitate these meetings which provide a safe space for those on 
a BRCA journey to work through the details of their diagnosis while also receiving the support 
and information they need from their peers, and from guest speakers. 

In conjunction with our bi-monthly meetings, an interactive WhatsApp group was established for 
all members of our community to share insights, information and the highs and lows of BRCA 
journey, any time of the day, with those who understand. This group is monitored by a Marie 
Keating Foundation nurse but is a self-management group, moderated by an elected BRCA 
support group member.
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I feel privileged to have trained as a 
peer support volunteer with the Marie 
Keating Foundation. I have had a 
longing desire to help other people 
on their BRCA journey from pre test 
through to post surgery and share my 
experiences in helping people at a 
very difficult time.” 
 
Melissa Nolan, BRCA support group member and 
peer mentor 

“
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BRCA  
Webinar
On the 23rd of April 2021, the Marie Keating Foundation hosted its fourth, and largest BRCA virtual conference 
to date, to give information and support to men, women and their families affected by a BRCA Gene alteration.

When someone tests positive for a BRCA 1 and BRCA 2 gene alteration, their life, and the lives of their families change 
forever. This genetic condition passed down from parent to child affects the body’s capability to supresses tumours 
and so leaves the BRCA positive person at an increased risk of developing cancer in their lifetime. 

BRCA positive people are more susceptible to developing certain cancer types due to their genetic alteration. These 
cancers can include some of the top five most common cancer types including breast, ovarian, prostate, melanoma, 
pancreatic cancer, etc.

For the fourth year in a row, the Marie Keating Foundation hosted a virtual BRCA Conference, bringing together a 
mixture of expert speakers and personal experiences to encompass the full spectrum of a life lived with a BRCA gene 
alteration. Guest speakers included Dr Triona McCarthy from the National Cancer Control Programme, Breast Care 
Specialists Carole Spillane and Yvonne Hanhauser, Genetic Counsellors Eoin Hanney and Jessica Kavanagh, and PhD 
Student and BRCA Carrier Niki Warner.

After the initial presentations, attendees were broken up in to smaller, focused breakout rooms where they would have 
a chance to speak with specialists such as psycho-oncologist Dr Yvonne O’Meara, Dr Shirley McQuaid and Karen Sage 
about the psychological impact of BRCA, options for having children and menopause. 

158 attendees registered for the day and the webinar was recorded and shared on the Foundation’s Virtual Support 
Hub, further increasing its reach.  

The webinar, supported by Astra Zeneca and MSD provided a community experience and outlet for information during 
the unprecedented time of isolation and seclusion for many on a BRCA journey.   
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Virtual Support  
Hub
Established in 2020, the Marie Keating Foundation’s Virtual Support 
Hub has continued to provide those affected by a cancer diagnosis 
with virtual support, expert information, and resources to those at 
every stage of their cancer journey. 

As more and more support services began to adapt to an online format, 
and cancer patients and survivors sought information on how to adapt to 
what has become our new normal, we were able to build on, and curate 
our Virtual Support Hub to ensure those newly diagnosed, completing 
treatment or simply looking for a little bit of help with a cancer diagnosis 
had access to the information they needed. 

In 2021, the Foundation continued to create invaluable video and webinar 
resources, including our Men’s Wellness Webinar series, exploring the 
unique needs of men as they navigate a cancer journey our second ever 
online BRCA and Metastatic Breast Cancer Awareness Day webinars, 
and much more. 

Our Virtual Support Hub also signposts to resources that can be helpful 
to those on a cancer journey, as well as those close to them. Online 
support groups, mindfulness exercises, workouts and tips for staying 
physically well and advice on how to cope with cancer while living through 
a global pandemic all continued to be covered and expanded on as the 
restrictions around COVID-19 continued to change.
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Social Inclusion  
Hub 
In 2021, the Foundation renewed our commitment to making cancer less frightening by enlightening 
for ALL through their work with underserved communities across Ireland.

In partnership with Local Development Companies in Roscommon and Offaly, our nursing team created, 
curated, and published three cancer awareness brochures, written in Arabic, focusing on cervical, breast 
and prostate cancer. To accompany those resources, the Marie Keating Foundation, with the help of a 
translator, performed a number of cancer awareness and prevention presentations, some online, some on 
site, through Arabic for members of the Syrian refugee community connected with the Local Development 
Companies. All of our presentations were made to offer a Q&A session after the presentation to ensure all 
questions and queries were answered, and everyone in attendance had the information and the tools they 
needed to help reduce their risk of cancer. 

Similar work was conducted in conjunction with Pavee Point, to ensure the Travelling community of 
Ireland has expert and timely access to cancer prevention and awareness information. With the assistance 
of members of the travelling community, a short video series was created to open up the conversation 
surrounding breast, bowel, prostate and ovarian cancer within the Travelling community. Ambassadors 
from Pavee Point engaged with our Director of Nursing, Helen Forristal, to go through the cancer types 
covered in our materials and awareness presentations, and make the conversation of cancer’s early 
warning signs, that much more accessible. 

All these assets, and presentation recordings were compiled and presented on the Marie Keating 
Foundation’s Social Inclusion Hub on our website. This hub became a one-stop-shop for all our work 
with underserved communities across Ireland and will continue to grow as our work in this area evolves.
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Wherever you are in Ireland you 
will always find the Marie Keating 
Foundation…we are all here to help 
in whatever way we can.”
 
Helen Forristal speaking on the importance of 
women’s health in a Breast Cancer Webinar 
translated to Arabic for the Syrian community.

“
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Letter from April

I found out about the Marie Keating Survive and Thrive programme 
from a wonderful lady I follow on Instagram – she too had been through 
a cancer diagnosis around the same time and we messaged over and 
back. I signed up for the programme and it was the best decision. I met 
some incredible ladies and gentlemen, who will be life-long friends, as 
well as Helen and Paul – unbelievable course givers. And Fiona for all the 
incredible organising.

We went through our stories, and with each one I cried. Life has been so 
cruel to all of us, but this programme is about thriving. As I write this, we 
are heading into week 5, and I have grown so much from the last 5 weeks. 
Whilst I know I have never been alone through this, and I was never scared 
to talk about my diagnosis, I know that what I am feeling now is normal. I 
have learned skills to manage situations, feelings, emotions, anxiety, pain, 
unknown pain, fatigue, fear and guilt. Some days are easier than others, 
and some days are incredibly hard. I have learned to plan things, accept 
things, find the good in things, and most importantly make time for me.” 

April Dore, Survive and Thrive participant

MKF  
Support  
Services 
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Survive and Thrive 
Programme 
2021 was another record year for the Marie Keating Foundation’s free, now 
eight week Survive and Thrive programme as we continued to grow our 
community, host online weekly calls and support more survivors than ever 
before. 

Established in 2014, these free survivorship workshops were designed to provide 
cancer survivors with the tools and community they need to adapt to life after 
cancer treatment ends.

Acknowledging that a cancer journey does not end when treatment does, these 
weekly workshops, facilitated by a Marie Keating Foundation nurse and trained 
cancer survivor, provide attendees with expert advice on how to self-manage the 
lasting side-effects of treatment that survivors often face, such as:
• coping with emotions
• fatigue and other symptoms
• changing nutritional needs
• coping with feelings and change
• managing stress and physical activity.

The first of 2021’s four Survive and Thrive programmes continued on in the vein of 
2020’s session online. 

Creating a digital space for cancer survivors across the country proved to work 
exceptionally well, accounting for better inclusion based on cancer type, location 
and experience of our cancer survivors. 

All four of our virtual programmes were fully booked and waiting lists for future 
programmes quickly started to develop. In an effort to compensate for the lack of in 
person connection, two more sessions were added to our 6 week long programme, 
including a “getting to know you” session at the beginning of the programme, and a 
wind down, pampering call, kindly facilitated by the team at Look Good, Feel Better 
at the end of the eight-week course. 

In the last 12 months, the need for this programme has continued to grow, as we 
saw a 55% growth in sign ups in 2021.

The Marie Keating Foundation recognises and embraces that each survivor’s cancer 
journey is unique, and everyone responds differently to the completion of treatment, 
and as the traditional in-person service transitioned to a virtual support network of 
survivors across the country, this fact became even more evident. 

During a further difficult year where cancer patients across the country experienced 
an unprecedented period of anxiety as what was deemed “safe” changed weekly, 
the Survive and Thrive programme created a space for cancer survivors to work 
through their emotions, and tackle some of the challenges they encountered all 
while receiving expert advice from a medical professional and a survivor who has 
learned to navigate their own path to recovery. 
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Surviveandthrive.ie 

In Ireland today, we have over 200,000 people from across the country that have come out the 
other side of cancer treatment. Despite this substantial number, the resources available to guide 
survivors through their transition from active treatment to life after cancer are extremely limited. 

To help bridge this gap, the Marie Keating Foundation’s cancer survivor repository, surviveandthrive.ie 
was launched in 2019. 

The sister-site run in tandem with the Marie Keating Foundation’s website provides information, advice, 
and support resources to those living with or beyond cancer.

In 2021, our communications team at the Foundation worked to increase the visibility of our survivorship 
site, investing resources and time in to improve the website SEO, and paid advertising. Over a three-
month period, visits to the website increased by over 1126.83%, meaning our information and resources 
surrounding coping with every stage of a cancer survivorship journey were more readily available for those 
who needed it.  

Acknowledging that it is not just the person receiving cancer treatment who needs support, this website 
is all inclusive, sharing resources and outlets for family members and carers alike.  
At surviveandthrive.ie survivors can also find helpful information on how to manage side effects often 
faced by those who have finished treatment; details of support centres and resources available around 
the country which survivors can avail of as well as patient and survivor’s stories. 
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Positive Living 

An advanced or metastatic cancer diagnosis can change the lives of 
those diagnosed and their families forever, but it is important to know that 
you do not have to walk that path alone. The Marie Keating Foundation’s 
Positive Living support group is here for you, every step of the way.

A metastatic cancer diagnosis means a primary cancer has now spread 
from its original source to other areas of the body. A diagnosis like this can 
be extremely isolating for those diagnosed, and their wide circle of family. 
Especially during times of such uncertainty, where in person interaction may 
be deemed too risky for those undergoing continuous cancer treatment, 
support, and community for this group of cancer survivors has been called 
upon like never before. 

Since 2016, the Marie Keating Foundation has facilitated monthly Positive 
Living support group meetings to give women living with metastatic breast 
cancer the space they need to process their diagnosis and what comes next. 
In 2021, our Positive Living group continued to grow as we added 27 new 
members to our monthly meetings. 

Due to the ongoing spread of COVID-19 and its variants, we continued to keep 
our bi-monthly meetings running online, which was a huge asset for members, 
as they could tune in from wherever they were in the country, some even 
choosing to tune in while receiving their cancer treatment. 

Sponsored by partners Pfizer and Takeda, Positive Living is a free support 
programme facilitated by the Foundation’s Director of Nursing and led by local 
experts who provide resources and support to help people with advanced 
cancer to navigate through their specific needs, as well as an active WhatsApp 
group for daily sharing and reassurance.  

Further to the success of this programme and the huge impact it had on 
participants living with advanced cancer, the Marie Keating Foundation 
launched a new Positive Living Group for men living with a stage 4 cancer 
diagnosis in September 2021.

Common topics discussed through both groups meetings include: 
• Working with your medical team and managing side effects. 
• Coping with the emotional impact of advanced cancer.
• Sexuality and relationships. 
• Altered body image, positive appearance and wellbeing. 
• Using mindfulness to cope. 
• Physical activity and stress management. 
• Talking to loved ones about your diagnosis.

The aim of this service is to help those living with an advanced cancer to 
improve their quality of life, find comfort in a community of their peers and to 
live well with a metastatic cancer diagnosis. 

In 2021, the Foundation held 23 meetings supporting over 56 cancer patients 
throughout the year.
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Back To Work  
After Cancer
Listening to feedback from patients, a cause for the greatest anxiety for many, is the transition back 
to work after people have completed their cancer treatment.

In response to this, the Foundation launched its Back to Work After Cancer booklet and microsite giving 
guidance to both employees and employers in how to manage this transition back to work after or during 
a cancer journey. Going through cancer can knock a person’s confidence and so it is imperative that the 
survivor and the employer have the right information and advice to ensure that the employee returning to 
work is supported in the correct way through that transition. The Foundation’s hope is that this resource 
will enable people to successfully return to the workplace giving cancer survivors back a feeling of control, 
confidence and a return to normality that may have seemed so far away from the minute they heard the 
words ‘you have cancer’.”

The booklet, kindly supported by Novartis, details advice and tips for survivors on how to plan their return 
to work and how to speak to their employer about the kind of supports they may need during this time. 
It also provides information for employers on what to consider and how best to support an employee 
retuning to the workforce after or during a cancer journey. In 2022 with Novartis support, the Foundation 
will develop specific Back to Work after Cancer workshops for employers and employees. 
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Fundraising in 2021

Letter from Linda Keating, Co-Founder & Executive Director

Just when we thought Ireland was getting back on its feet again after COVID-19 in 2020,  we were devastated to see restrictions being reimposed 
coming into 2021 and had to dig deep to ensure we could raise the vital funds to support the cancer community who needed us more than ever.

Thankfully the Marie Keating Foundation has come through the pandemic stronger than ever before and that is with thanks to everybody who 
supported us during this time. I am so proud to see how our amazing team of nurses and office staff did such an outstanding job adjusting how we 
provide our services and transitioning them to online delivery.  

As the need for our services increased, so too did the need for funding and as we depend so much on the public as we get so little government 
funding, I can only say how humbled I was by the outreach of generosity from the people of Ireland to the Marie Keating and for that I am truly 
grateful to you all.  

We continued to run new virtual fundraising events with the Your Health Your Choice challenge as well as our Virtual Breast Cancer 5k/10k 
sponsored by Pigsback, to personal donations. We were so delighted to be able to host another amazing Concert4Cancer during the summer and 
are so grateful to all the artists and ambassadors who helped us to bring this enormous production to our TV screens. At the same time we were 
able to progress our fundraising strategy investing in new fundraising methods with Individual Giving, Legacy and Digital Fundraising enabling us to 
diversify our fundraising base.

As a nation, the Irish people have shown the breadth of their ability to cope with what is thrown at them and their ability to continue to support 
charities that are close to their hearts and we at the Marie Keating Foundation are no different.

Over the past two difficult years of the pandemic, you supported us when we needed it most and in so doing you gave us the ability to continue to 
be there to support people and their families at every step of their cancer journey.

Please do know that if you or somebody you know on a cancer journey needs us, do know that we are here to do all we can to help and support 
you and your family. 

God bless

Linda Keating
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Impact of Covid-19  
on fundraising 
Due to the lasting impact of COVID-19 and in an effort to keep all of our staff and 
service users safe, the Marie Keating Foundation was unable to hold any of  of 
our traditional fundraising events during 2021. This and the more recent impact 
of the cost-of living crises and rising inflation levels have  had a negative  impact 
on our income in 2021 with an overall decline of 10% compared with 2020. All of 
this came at a time when the demand for our services had increased as cancer 
patients and survivors needed more support at a time when they were especially 
vulnerable.

In 2021, total income raised amounted to €1,769,485 representing a decrease of 
€198,316 or a 10% decrease over the prior year.

Despite the ongoing COVID pandemic, the Foundation was able to adapt its 
fundraising from mainly in-person events to a wider mix of fundraising channels 
in line with our Fundraising Strategy. Instead of traditional key fundraising events 
such as our Annual Celebrity Golf Classic, Camino Trek or Christmas Lunch, the 
Foundation instead raised funds through on-line challenges, the Concert4Cancer, 
corporate sponsorship and Individual Giving.
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Fundraising  
in 2021 

Fundraising Initiatives

2021 continued to provide new fundraising 
challenges for the Marie Keating Foundation. With 
Ireland’s third lockdown due to the COVID-19 
pandemic, the Foundation was able to seamlessly 
create new fundraising initiatives and transform 
previous ones into an online format to continuously 
support our community at every step of their 
cancer journey.

Total funds raised in 2021: €1.769,485

As a charity which receives very little government funding, the Marie 
Keating Foundation relies largely on the generosity of the public and 
our corporate partners to raise funding. While still dealing with the 
repercussions of the global pandemic, fundraising in 2021 proved to be a 
new challenge for the foundation with many of our traditional fundraising 
events being cancelled or altered to fit an online format. Nevertheless, 
we had some incredible fundraising campaigns in 2021, and with the 
generous help of the public and our corporate sponsors, we were able to 
raise €783,912 for the Marie Keating Foundation. 

Third Party Fundraisers
We would like to extend a special thanks to all of the groups, volunteers 
and sponsors who generously organised their own fundraising events 
on behalf of the Marie Keating Foundation throughout the year. These 
events which were organised all around the country included Bake Sales; 
Runs, Golf Events; Walks, Cycles, and even a Tractor Drive. Without 
your support and faith in our mission, we would not be able to do the 
incredible work we do for our community. In total, third party events 
raised €185,804 in 2021.
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Your Health, Your Choice Challenge

The Marie Keating Foundation’s 2021 Your Health, Your Choice challenge featured a 
campaign to inspire our community to be more active and kick off 2021 in a healthy way. 
The challenge was suitable for everybody, from beginners to seasoned walkers/runners, 
and could be taken up at any time that suited your schedule. We asked the community 
to walk 10,000 steps a day every day for 20 days to hit a grand total of 200,000 steps to 
show support and solidarity with the 200,000 cancer survivors in Ireland. In registering 
for this event, participants received a 21-day nutrition plan as well as a basic training 
programmedto educate participants about how to create a healthy lifestyle. The challenge 
was a great success for the foundation, with 300 people participating and €8,840 raised. 

Amount Raised: €8,840
Number of Participants: 300

Concert4Cancer 

As everyone adjusted to life in lockdown and established Following the fantastic success 
of  the first-ever virtual Concert4Cancer  held in 2020, we decided to adopt a similar 
formula in August 2021 with a second concert featuring on Virgin Media One. Ronan 
Keating and Anna Daly hosted a two hour show with an eclectic mix of great Irish and 
international  musicians, filmed appeals for donations from various luminaries, interspersed 
with some incredibly moving testimonials from those affected by cancer and who have 
been supported by the Marie Keating Foundation.

While a great deal of time and effort was put into this event, without a core sponsor  and 
with restrictions raised, the second Concert4Cancer did not attract as many viewers 
or as much income as the concert in in 2021. A total of €261,941 was still raised and more 
than 600,000 people tuned in to watch the event from the comfort of their homes. 

Total raised: €261,941
Total number of live views: 623,450

Digital challenges/appeals 
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Virtual 5k/10k Run sponsored by Pigsback

After the success of our 2020 Virtual Pigsback challenge, in 2021 we hoped to once 
again build on previous events, and get even more people involved than ever before.  
Runners, walkers and joggers  still donned the Pigsback.com/ Marie Keating Foundation 
t-shirt, with the added bonus of having the freedom to be able to complete the run, walk 
or jog in their locality, on any day during the month of October. Participants could post 
their scores online on the myrunresults.com leader board to view their ranking.

Participants paid a flat fee of €20 to take part, which included the price of admission 
and a t-shirt. Challenge participants were also given the option to pay an additional €10 
to receive a bespoke MKF 2021 Challenge Medal. Overall our second virtual Pigsback 
Run was a huge success, with 170 participants and an amazing €31,382 raised. 

Amount Raised: €31,382
Number of Participants: 170

Christmas Appeal

Towards the end of another difficult fundraising year for the Foundation, we once again 
reached out teached out to our supporter community via an Emergency E-Mail Appeal 
to ask for support to continue carrying on our mission to ‘make cancer less frightening 
by enlightening’.

With the increase of activity within our Individual Giving Programme, our Christmas 
Appeal in 2021 was very successful, raising an astounding €24,576, with an average 
gift of €73 per person. 

Amount Raised: €24,576
Average Donation: €73
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Individual Giving Programme 

As part of our new Fundraising Strategy, one major area of work that was identified 
as crucial to developing a more sustainable funding base is the Individual Giving 
programme.

Due to the challenges of COVID, we started in earnest to grow Individual Giving in April 
2021 with the engagement of Mark Maliniak as Head of Individual Giving. 

Before any major fundraising was undertaken, we needed to ensure the foundations of 
what will be a diverse and important area of fundraising were stable. This included a 
review of the CRM, MS Dynamics, to ensure it was fit for purpose and being utilised in 
an effective and insightful way.  We also needed to complete several ongoing pieces of 
work in relation to the processing of direct debits and  recurring credit card payments 
through the website and CRM.  This work is still ongoing with further development and 
support needed in relation to the CRM.

The next stage was to ensure new supporters felt welcome and engaged with the 
Foundation, and as part of this process we reviewed the onboarding of new donors to 
ensure our values come through whilst showing the impact of a donor’s support.  We 
created a series of new emails and webpages that showed the impact of supporting 
the work of our brilliant team of nurses, these were sent to new donors as part of their 
onboarding process.  We also created a brand-new welcome booklet introducing new 
supporters and donors to the Foundation with a brief history, several case studies, 
some of the key statistics from the annual report and a brief overview of our support 
services.

Finally, once we were broadly happy with the foundations and onboarding process, we 
started our first major campaign to recruit new donors through face-to-face recruitment 
working in shopping centres to recruit new supporters on a regular gift (direct debit). 
By the end of the campaign, we have recruited 406 new donors giving an average of 
€17.50 per month, and importantly received no complaints.

With this programme running we then turned our attention to our existing supporters 
and launched our emergency Christmas appeal which raised an incredible €24,576 with 
an average gift of €73 – reminding us all here at the Foundation of the generosity of our 
donors.

Throughout the year we developed our case for support which is still in development 
but elements of it have made their way into our fundraising campaigns and help to 
highlight the importance of supporting the Marie Keating Foundation’s nurses.

Finally, we updated our legacy marketing materials, adding a new webpage promoting 
the importance of leaving a gift in your will and we created new materials for interested 
supporters and members of the public to download or receive in the post.

2021 proved to be a valuable learning lesson for us and we faced many challenges in 
terms of some of our processes and systems, but despite this 2021 was a good start to 
the growth of our Individual Giving fundraising.
 
We have more work to do in working with digital channels such as Facebook, Twitter, 
Instagram and even TikTok but look forward to these new methods of fundraising 
reaping benefits for the Foundation in future years. 

No of new regular donors: 406
Average Monthly Donation: €17.50
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Corporate  
Partners
Amount raised through corporate sponsorship: €783,912
Number of key corporate partners: 20

Following a year like 2020 was no easy thing to do, and the incredible work 
we achieved in 2021 would not have been possible without the support of 
our corporate partners. Through cause marketing, campaign, programme 
and event sponsorship, monetary and in-kind donations, community and 
employee engagement, as well as overwhelming volunteer support, these 
organisations proved vital in helping the Marie Keating Foundation’s efforts 
to save lives each year.

Over the past number of years, the Foundation has forged a number of 
key strategic partnerships from the pharmaceutical sector include working 
with companies such as Astellas, AstraZeneca, Bristol Meyer Squibb, MSD, 
Novartis, Pfizer, Roche, Servier, and Takeda. In addition to pharmaceutical  
and health partnerships, key partners from other sectors include Pigsback.
com, Paypal Giving, Harvey Norman and Grafton Barber have stood by us 
and supported our fundraising endeavours. 

Raising €783,912 in sponsorship and donations, these key corporate 
sponsors truly made it possible for the Foundation to provide education, 
awareness, and support services to people all across Ireland. Thanks to their 
support our nursing team was able to share life-saving information about 
cancer awareness and prevention to counties across Ireland. Our numerous 
multi-dimensional  cancer awareness campaigns were sponsored  by these 
corporate partners as well as our Positive Living and Survive and Thrive 
patient support groups which we transitioned to an on-line format, thereby 
supporting more people living with and beyond cancer. 
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Patrons and  
Ambassadors
Throughout the years we have been so fortunate to 
have the support from our community of wonderful 
patrons and ambassadors as well as patient 
advocates. Even in a year as unpredictable as 2021, 
they selflessly offered their time and energy to aid 
our cancer support and awareness services as well 
as fundraising endeavours. In particular in 2021, 
these ambassadors went above and beyond to help 
make our second Concert4Cancer a huge success 
with so many artists contributing to this amazing TV 
fundraiser. 
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Supporters and  
Volunteers 
As a charitable organisation, the Foundation relies on our 
unwavering supporters’ generosity and selflessness. With 
no in-person events taking place in 2021, our supporters 
both old and new proved more vital than ever in endorsing 
our efforts in cancer awareness and support. 

While normally our loyal volunteers from corporate and 
community groups help out at fundraising events and at 
awareness events such as the Ploughing Championships 
and Bloom, this year our supporters and volunteers also 
contributed to our many different campaigns, appeals and 
online challenges. By sharing our key messaging and stories 
through social media channels and virtual events, these 
supporters and volunteers helped us to extend the reach 
and impact of our work. We are eternally grateful for for the 
help of volunteers when we need it and are looking forward 
to developing a more engaging volunteer policy for the future 
as our services are able to be provided in person once more. 
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Strategic Plan  
2020 - 2025  
In the summer of 2021, the Board of the Foundation undertook a complete review of the foundation’s 
strategic direction to set out a clear road map of the key objectives to be achieved. Unfortunately, 
due to the COVID-19 global pandemic, our strategic plan timeline had to be adjusted and will now 
be a five-year undertaking and take place from 2020-2025. 

At the Marie Keating Foundation, we recognise that while cancer is not always life-threatening, it is 
almost always life-changing. We understand how cancer can affect every aspect of a person’s life – not 
just their physical health. In striving to achieve our vision of ‘A World Free from the Fear of Cancer’ in 
this Strategic Plan we have set out how over the next five years we will enhance our services so that the 
Maire Keating Foundation can make a real difference for as many people affected by cancer in Ireland 
as possible. 

As part of the development of this plan, a Strategic Review and SWOT analysis was conducted by 
the Board and Executive Team to build the strategy content and to take into account the evolving 
requirements of those affected by cancer. Extensive stakeholder consultation was conducted with 
patients, service users, staff and trustees, donors, volunteers and peer organisations in order to assess 
current and future needs. 

The Mission, Vision, Values and Strategic Objectives of the Foundation were reviewed and our core 
focus and priorities were agreed upon by the Executive and approved by the Board of Directors. 

The six strategic goals outlined in this plan are ambitious. Undoubtedly, the Marie Keating Foundation will 
face considerable challenges that may affect all that we aspire to over the next five years. In particular, 
developing a more sustainable funding model to enable us to support our core services will present 
particular challenges. However, twenty-four years since Marie Keating sadly lost her battle to cancer, we 
stand ready and all the more committed to find solutions in partnership with others to realise our goals. 
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Consolidate our strong role in 
cancer awareness, education 
and prevention.

Enhance our support services 
to ensure we  make a meaningful 
difference to those on a cancer 
journey.

Develop our survivorship 
services for people living with or 
beyond cancer. 

Our Ambition 
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Our Strategic Goals

Strengthen our impact in communities, schools, and 
workplaces focusing on reducing cancer risk and early 
detection.
Why is this important:
The Marie Keating Foundation aspires to ensure that more people understand what 
they can do to reduce their risk of cancer by adopting healthier lifestyles and being 
aware of early signs & symptoms. 

Key Actions
Enhance our cancer awareness, prevention and education services including: 
• Community Mobile Outreach Service
• School’s Cancer Awareness Programme • Cancer Awareness Campaigns, and
• Corporate Wellness Programme

Impact these actions will have
Enable the Marie Keating Foundation to play its role in implementing the National Cancer 
Strategy to reduce the number of people diagnosed with cancer and ensure those who are 
diagnosed will have the best possible outcomes through early detection and meaningful 
support. 

Highlight throughout all our services the key message of early detection as spotting cancer 
at the earliest opportunity gives someone the best chance of successful treatment and 
having a better quality of life.

Develop our Cancer Support & Survivorship services 
to make a meaningful difference for those living with or 
beyond cancer
Why is this important
As more people are diagnosed with and survive cancer, the Marie Keating Foundation 
recognises the key role it can play in ensuring those living with and beyond cancer 
have access to vital support services at every stage of the cancer journey. 

Key Actions
• Ensure that our Comfort Fund assistance is directed at those who are financially negatively 
impacted by cancer so the grants are more meaningful 
• Meet specific needs of patient groups such as those with hereditary cancers (BRCA) & 
those affected by the Cervical Check debacle 
• Further develop our cancer survivorship services and programmes including Survive & 
Thrive, Positive Living, Back to Work after Cancer programme to make the transition back 
to the ‘new Normal’ more straightforward. 

Impact these actions will have
Through its range of support and survivorship services the Marie Keating Foundation 
can help to make the cancer journey less arduous in a practical and positive way. Any 
cancer diagnosis can be life-changing and bring feelings and emotions that are difficult to 
understand.  The Marie Keating Foundation’s nurses will work to reduce the fear and worry 
for anyone with questions or concerns about cancer treatment and its side effects and 
through our support groups will link patients to others with a similar diagnosis to help them
better understand the challenge ahead.

1. 2.
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Develop a new funding model to ensure sustainability & 
to support our future growth
Why is this important
The Marie Keating Foundation is largely dependent on fundraising to deliver our 
services, but this leaves us vulnerable with no regular income stream or ability to 
commit to and plan our services. It is imperative that we develop a wider mix of 
funding to ensure we can properly plan and resource our service delivery. 

Key Actions
• Continue to grow existing income streams (Marie Keating Foundation events/ corporate 
partnerships, etc.) 
• Build diversified funding mix/channels 
• Develop a new Individual Giving strategy as a sustainable source of funding 
• Ensure we provide impact to our donors & funders 
• Identify ways of accessing other e.g. governmental funding 

Impact these actions will have
Achieving a more sustainable funding model will allow us to fund and grow key services 
and will enable us to support more people in the future. It will reduce our reliance on single 
sources of funding and provide stronger sustainability for planned delivery of services. 
Any cancer diagnosis can be life-changing and bring feelings and emotions that are difficult 
to understand.  The Marie Keating Foundation’s nurses will work to reduce the fear and 
worry for anyone with questions or concerns about cancer treatment and its side effects 
and through our support groups will link patients to others with a similar diagnosis to help 
them better understand the challenge ahead.

Build our brand profile & reputation as a leading voice in 
cancer awareness & support
Why is this important
It’s important that all of our key stakeholders including the public, patients, healthcare 
professionals, donors, peer organisations and supporters, all understand what we 
do and have the utmost trust and respect for the integrity of our work. Ensuring we 
have a strong and visible external profile will help make sure that people are aware 
of the breadth and depth of our services and how they can access that support when 
they need it. 

Key Actions
• Devise communications strategy ensuring consistent messaging on all the Marie Keating 
Foundation channels to increase awareness, engagement and support 
• Build our external profile through evidence-based content and campaigns 
• Collaborate with peer organisations and other stakeholders to highlight issues affecting 
cancer patients 

Impact these actions will have 
By ensuring there is greater awareness of our services and how we can offer support, more 
people in need will be aware of how and where they can access our services. A strong 
brand and profile will lead to improved engagement levels with our services, campaigns 
and our cause. By carving out a space for our voice in the media, we can influence change 
when needed, speak on behalf of the patient to key decisions and policy makers and 
advocate for better funding, resources and services for cancer patients and the wider 
cancer community.

3. 4.
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Ensure we maintain best in class governance standards
Why is this important
It is crucial that the Marie Keating Foundation has the trust of its supporters, the 
public and key stakeholders. In order to achieve this its reputation relies on strong 
governance and transparency, ensuring full compliance with the Charities Regulatory 
Standards. 

Key Actions
•  Conduct ongoing reviews including the Charities Governance Code & other Regulatory 

Codes 
• Conduct independent audit & financial review annually 
• Ensure ongoing Board reviews of governance & finance 

Impact these actions will have
By ensuring the highest governance standards, the public, donors, supporters and key 
stakeholders will have the utmost trust in the Marie Keating Foundation as a registered 
charity. Key to this is full adherence to principles of integrity, accountability and transparency.

Build the human, systems & organisational resources 
necessary to continue our growth path
Why is this important
In order for the Marie Keating Foundation to grow and deliver more of its key services 
to more people, it is essential that we have adequate resources and personnel 
to help us achieve our mission and ensure the quality and high standards of our 
work. It’s also important to allow us to continue to comply with legal and statutory 
requirements. 

Key Actions
•  Conduct a review /gap analysis to identify key human, ICT and other resources to be 

recruited/implemented 
• Develop a comprehensive HR plan to attract & retain highly qualified staff 
• Identifying need for additional resources and systems 

Impact these actions will have
Ensuring we are adequately resourced will provide a happy and positive working 
environment for the Foundation’s dedicated staff. It will allow the Marie Keating Foundation 
to continue to operate at the highest level of accountability and to the highest standards. 
Most importantly it means that our services are delivered by professional staff, ensuring a 
quality service for all who engage with the Foundation. 

5. 6.
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Report Of The Board

Board and Governance  

The company is governed by a Constitution in accordance 
with the Companies Act 2014.  The directors and company 
secretary who served during the year did not have a 
beneficial interest in the company. All Directors and 
Company Secretary serve in a voluntary capacity.

The Board is made up of experienced members drawn 
from a variety of sectors, including nursing, legal affairs, 
marketing, communications, medicine, banking and 
finance whose skills and expertise help the Foundation 
to maximise its potential and who steer the Foundation’s 
executive and management team in matters of governance 
and strategy.

The Board is also responsible for appointing the Chief 
Executive Officer (CEO) and setting pay rates for the CEO 
and senior staff. In accordance with their volunteer status 
and in line with the governing documents, none of our 
Board members receive remuneration for services offered 
to the Marie Keating Foundation. Members of the Board 
may serve a maximum of two, three-year terms. This Board 
rotation ensures that new members are introduced to 
provide fresh perspectives and skills to the Board. 

Led by CEO Liz Yeates, the Senior Management Team at 
the Foundation consists of non-clinical management and 
professional staff working alongside a team of registered 
nurses who are based regionally. Our nursing team reports 
to Helen Forristal, Director of Nursing Services and delivers  
the Foundation’s community outreach work, corporate 
wellness and school’s cancer awareness  programmes, as 
well as the programmes for cancer patients and survivors.

The Board has entrusted day to day decision making to 
the CEO and Senior Management Team and the Board 
is responsible for appraising and monitoring the work of 
the CEO. The CEO is answerable to the Board and does 
not undertake activities or make decisions outside of 
theparameters established by the Board. At each Board 
Meeting, the CEO report gives an overview of finances, 
operations, HR and staffing, fundraising, services and 
strategy implementation. The Board gives priority to 
achieving the highest standards of corporate governance, 
including strategic planning, financial management and 
fundraising. Decisions regarding investments inexcess of 
€50,000 are brought to the Board for approval.

The Marie Keating Foundation is registered in Ireland, limited by guarantee with a governing Board of Directors 
all of whom are non-executive. Our Board of Directors each volunteer their expertise and time to bring unique 
ideas, knowledge, and skills to support the Foundation’s aim to achieve its mission of ‘making cancer less 
frightening by enlightening’. 



102

Report Of The Board

Board Meetings in 2021

The Board met seven times during the year on the following 
dates: 
• 9th of March 2021 at 4:30pm
• 20th of April 2021 at 5pm
• 23rd August 2021 at 4.30pm
• 14th September 2021 at 5pm
• 19th October 2021 at 5pm
• 23rd November 2021 at 6pm

• 21st December 2021 at 5pm

In March 2021, Boardmatch were commissioned to conduct 
an external review of the Marie Keating Foundation Board 
and the results were shared with the Board with a number of 
enhancements to Board composition and effectiveness being 
recommended.

Work of Board Sub-Committees: 
The Fundraising and Communications sub-committee oversees the 
implementation of the Fundraising Strategy and reviews matters 
relating to the profile, reputation and external communications of 
the Foundation. In 2021, this sub-committee met on 3 occasions 
separate to the Board Meetings to review progress on the Strategic 
Plan; to review proposed KPIs to measure fundraising performance 
and to review specific issues pertaining to the Marie Keating 
Foundation Every Step campaign.

The Strategy/ Nursing Services sub-committee reviews the 
performance of the Foundation’s cancer awareness and support 
services and ensures that these are developing in line with the 
Foundation’s mission and strategy. In 2021 this sub-committee met 

twice to assess realignment of the Foundation’s nursing services 
during the ongoing pandemic to review how we could best meet 
the needs of the cancer community through on-line delivery.

The Audit and Finance sub-committee continues to review and 
monitor the Foundation’s budgets, forecasts, monthly accounts 
and audits, and met 6 times in 2021.

The Marie Keating Foundation Board of Directors includes:

• Michael O’Reilly (Chairperson) is retired and is a former Group 
Chief Finance Officer of Group M Limited and Finance Director 
of CCG Creative Communications Group 

• Patricia Lawlor (Secretary) is Managing Director of Scope 
Clinical Research Ltd

• Dr Ron Grainger is a retired Consultant Urologist who formerly 
worked at the Adelaide & Meath, Tallaght, St James, National 
Rehabilitation Hospital and Beacon hospitals 

• Mark Grehan is Group Communications Director with utilities 
company Ervia/Irish Water

• Marie Claire Scullion is a Lawyer and Partner with law firm 
Whitney Moore 

• Laura Larkin is an Accountant and Associate Partner with  
international accounting firm KPMG

• Marie McGinley is a Lawyer and Partner, Head of IP, 
Technology and DP at international law firm Eversheds 
Sutherland

• Mark Culleton is Head of Asset Finance with Allied Irish Banks 
• Barbara O’Reilly is Global Network Director for the RSA 

Insurance Group
• Kathy O’Donnell is Director of EMEA Marketing with Gong

Board Member  
Attendance

No. of 
Meetings  
attended

Michael O’Reilly 7/7

Patricia Lawlor 5/7

Dr Ron Grainger 7/7

Mark Grehan 5/7

Marie Claire Scullion 6/7

Laura Larkin 6/7

Marie McGinley 6/7

Mark Culleton 6/7

Barbara O'Reilly 5/7

Kathy O'Donnell 7/7
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Board Meeting Summary:

Date of Meeting Topics of discussion:

9th of March 2021 at 
4:30pm

Strategy discussion, Fundraising, Annual Report 2020, Board Administration, Management Accounts,  MKF Branding 

20th of April 2021 at 5pm Finance and Audit Committee Report, KPIs for Nursing Services, MKF Board Recruitment Policy, Risk Register Update, 221+ Update

23rd August 2021 at 
4.30pm

Board approval of 2020n statutory financial statements, Overview of the Concert4Cancer

14th September 2021 at 
5pm

Concert4Cancer Evaluation, Annual Board Review, Financial update and revised forecast.

19th October 2021 at 
5pm

External Board Review, Skills audit, Review and approval of several policies, Check and monitor of MKF reserves policy versus the accounts, Risk 
Register review, Individual Giving Update, Charities Governance Code Self Assessment Record

23rd November 2021 at 
6pm

Board members administration, Skills audit, Review and approval of several policies, 

21st December 2021 at 
5pm

 Revised Budget for the year ended 31st December 2022 was presented for approval, Individual Giving budget, Nursing Services  
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Board Meeting Summary:Board Member  
Attendance

No. of 
Meetings  
attended

Michael O’Reilly 6/6

Laura Larkin 6/6

Date of Meeting Topics of discussion:

18th of December 2020 
at 10:30am

Presentation and Discussion of Fundraising Strategy and budget

21st of January 2021 at 
11am

Presentation and Discussion of Fundraising Strategy, Discussion of Investment

14th of April 2021 at 
12pm

February 2021 YTD Management Accounts, Reforecast, Reserves Policy

28th of July 2021 at 2pm Review of financial statements for year ended 31st December 2020 and Mazars Audit 
Findings report 

5th October 2021 at 
12pm

Review of management accounts YTD 30th  August 2021, Reforecast to 31 December 
2021, Reserves Policy

29th October 2021 at 
12pm

Review of Reforecast to 31st December 2021 following 19th  October Board meeting, 
Reserves policy
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Report Of The Board

Governance

The Marie Keating Foundation Board of 
Directors is committed to maintaining the 
highest standards of corporate governance and 
has taken action to ensure that the Foundation 
is fully compliant with the principles outlined in 
the Charities Governance Code issued by the 
Charities Regulator of Ireland.

The Board completed a full review of the Charities 
Governance Code in October 2021 and for the sixth 
year was awarded the Triple Lock membership from 
the Charities Institute Ireland, which demonstrates 
the Foundation’s commitment to best practise 
in all aspects of good governance, transparency 
and fundraising. A review of the Foundation’s 
compliance with the principles of the Code is 
conducted annually. 

Furthermore in October 2021, the Foundation was 
delighted to be the winner of the Good Governance 
Award for its 2020 Annual Report in its class of 
organisations with income of between €1million and 
€5million.
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Fundraising / Income 
In 2021, total income for the year amounted to €1,769,485 representing a decrease 
of €198,316 or a 10% decrease over the prior year. Whilst it was disappointing 
that our overall income declined leading to a deficit of €121,296, this was largely 
attributable to the ongoing enforced cancellation of fundraising events due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic and the associated impacts on the Foundation’s operations. 

In line with our Fundraising Strategy and following on from 2020, the Foundation 
was able to adapt its fundraising from mainly in-person events to a wider mix of 
fundraising channels as set out in the Foundation’s Strategic Plan 2020 - 2025. 
Instead of traditional key fundraising events such as our Annual Celebrity Golf 
Classic, Camino Trek or Christmas Lunch, the Foundation instead relied on 
corporate sponsorship; on-line challenges; digital and social media fundraising 
and the Concert4Cancer to raise funds in 2021. Unfortunately unlike in 2020, 
there was no statutory assistance in the form of a COVID-19 Stability Fund 
scheme for the charity and voluntary sector in 2021 which accounted largely for 
the drop in income.

In order to develop a new funding model to ensure sustainability and support our 
future growth, the Marie Keating Foundation launched a new Fundraising Strategy 
in 2020 which sets out new fundraising channels and more ambitious fundraising 
targets over the next 5 years. A key part of this strategy is the investment in and 
development of an Individual 

Giving strategy with a view to developing a new and more sustainable income 
stream to support the Foundation’s services. As part of this, a new Head of 
Individual Giving was appointed who implemented a new Face to Face fundraising 
framework in a number of shopping centre venues around the country. We also 
trialled a new Door to Door fundraising activity.  Both of these initiatives were 
extremely successful with more than 550 new regular givers now donating to the 
Foundation on a monthly basis.

The Foundation invested further in upgrades to our CRM system and digital 
platforms as well as in staff recruitment and training to enable this type of 
fundraising which will become a more important pillar of our Fundraising mix 
over the next 5 years. 

KPI’s 
As part of our new Fundraising Strategy, a stronger focus was put on the 
measurement of fundraising results including Return on Investment and specific 
fundraising targets and Key Performance Indicators for each campaign and 
event. These included Gross and Net Income per Event and Campaign; Return 
on Investment; Number of leads generated and donors recruited; Average Gift 
per campaign; Attrition levels per fundraising channel etc.

Directors’  
Report

Financial Review, Achievements And Performance
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Corporate Sponsorship 
In addition to fundraising events, campaigns and Individual Giving appeals, the 
Foundation further consolidated its relationship with and increased income from 
a number of key corporate partners, particularly in the health and pharmaceutical 
sectors. During COVID-19 when there was a detrimental and disruptive impact 
on cancer services generally, the ongoing support of these key strategic partners 
enabled the Foundation to provide much-needed support services for cancer 
patients and their families. Total income raised from corporate partnerships 
amounted to €783,912. In line with our Fundraising Strategy a new Corporate 
Partnerships Manager was also recruited during 2021 reflecting our ambition to 
grow this segment of our annual income further.

Unrestricted income in 2021 raised from the Foundation’s fundraising events, 
campaigns, private donations, third-party events and other trading activities 
was €1,321,193. This funded our core nursing services including our Mobile 
Outreach Service; School’s Cancer Awareness Programme; Comfort Fund and 
Survivorship Programmes as well as salary and operational expenses.

Restricted income in 2021 from corporate partnerships and grants amounted 
to €448,292 and this funded our five cancer awareness campaigns (on Bowel 
Cancer; Bladder Cancer; Breast Cancer; Lung Cancer; Prostate Cancer); Cancer 
Awareness Podcast Series on Melanoma and Skin Cancer and Lung Cancer; 
Positive Living and BRCA Support and Survivorship Services.

Reserves Strategy
As a charity, it is vitally important that the Foundation maintains and develops its 
income sources to ensure sufficient funds are available for the continuation of its 
services. The Directors review all fundraising channels and sources of income 
on an ongoing basis and at every Board Meeting. In addition, the reserves level 
is monitored to ensure that reserves are maintained at a reasonable level in the 
context of planned expenditure and future commitments. 

On 31 December 2021, the Foundation had total unrestricted reserves of 
€602,933 and net current assets of €564,140. Excluding stock, net current assets 
amounted to €550,658. The Foundation’s policy is to keep this value at three 
times average monthly expenditure amounting to €472,695. 

Expenditure 
In 2021 the total expenditure on charitable activities excluding overheads was 
€1,356,327. This represents 77% of total income and 72% of total expenditure, 
and an increase compared with 2020. 

This reflects the fact that all of our nursing services were in much demand during 
COVID-19 as cancer patients relied heavily on our patient support services, Ask 
The Nurse Helpline, Comfort Fund and patient support workshops and meetings 
throughout COVID-19. Our Comfort Fund was reinstated in November 2020 and 
the Foundation was able to support 234 families throughout 2021.
 
Overheads were well managed at €120,474 or 6.4% of total expenditure. Overall, 
the Foundation recorded net expenditure, before depreciation and amortisation, 
of €100,522. After charging depreciation and amortisation of €20,774, the net 
expenditure was €121,296. 

At €413,980, fundraising costs were also managed tightly in general reflecting 
the investment in new sources of funding and transition to online channels 
during COVID-19. The increase in the cost of raising funds of 8% compared 
with the prior year is due to the investment in Individual Giving and Corporate 
Partnerships, digital platforms for on-line appeals and campaigns and also to 
the production and campaign costs of the Concert4Cancer TV fundraising event.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The Board of the Marie Keating Foundation dealt with any major risk as presented during the 
year and recognises the need for continuously updating and strengthening processes for risk 
management. 
In line with good governance, the Foundation actively manages its principal risks. A risk register 
is maintained which identifies key risks and the controls that have been put in place to mitigate 
and manage these risks. All financial, reputational, operational, strategic and other risks are 
monitored on an ongoing basis and reported at Board Meetings and a detailed risk review is 
conducted twice yearly.

The COVID-19 pandemic continued to present as the highest level risk to the Foundation 
in 2021 impacting on the Foundation’s income projections for 2021 and creating further 
uncertainty in relation to the funding likely to be available to the organisation. The Marie Keating 
Foundation continued to react by carefully adjusting and closely monitoring its budgets and 
expenditure to reflect likely levels of available income. By innovating and adding a range of new 
online fundraising appeals, events and campaigns, and continuing with the Concert4Cancer 
for a second year, the Foundation achieved a better balance in its revenue mix and reduced its 
reliance on fundraising events as such a key component. 

Another key risk identified during the ongoing COVID -19 pandemic related to our ability 
to provide our core cancer awareness and support services. As a result of the COVID-19 
restrictions, a number of the Foundation’s services had to be stood down. Our face to face 
community nursing services were negatively impacted and the Foundation had to continue to 
provide its patient support meetings and workshops online.

The Foundation continued to respond to the risks posed by COVID-19 by constantly monitoring 
and updating the COVID risk register; identifying the risks to income, to staff, to services, to our 
reputation. The register also mapped out the mitigation steps and actions required, the time 
frames and impact on income, etc. 

These were reviewed at a number of meetings with our Board that were held specifically to 
address COVID-19 matters. The Board also put a particular focus on monitoring the Foundation’s 
cashflow forecasts and finances on a monthly basis. Internal risks were minimised by the 
implementation and upgrading of procedures and policies for authorisation of all transactions 
and projects and by timely reporting to the Board. All procedures are periodically reviewed and 
updated to ensure that they are relevant to the Foundation’s needs and in line with external 
guidance.

MKF Staff 
The Foundation is an equal opportunities employer and ensures that all employee contracts, 
staff procedures and Staff Handbooks are regularly updated to ensure ongoing compliance 
with employment legislation. Under the guidance of our HR and Remuneration Committee, the 
Foundation benchmarks employee salaries and benefits every year against the Community 
Foundation’s annual sectoral review. Four new staff members were recruited in 2021 including a 
new Nurse for the Southern region, a new Administrative Executive, a Head of Individual Giving 
and a Corporate Partnerships Manager. 

Throughout 2021, our Health and Safety Officers were particularly active in drafting new 
COVID-19 health and safety protocols and ensuring that the Foundation was in full adherence 
to HSE and Department of Health guidelines. 

Whilst all the Foundation’s staff are encouraged to undergo further training and education, 
the Board pledged to put in place a specific training budget for all staff in 2021. A number of 
staff took advantage of this opportunity attending Fundraising, Leadership, Digital Marketing 
and Accounting courses throughout the year. In 2021, a number of nurse training days were 
organised for all of the nursing staff with a view to ongoing upskilling and updating.

Directors’  
Report

Financial Review, Achievements And Performance
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Future Developments
In line with our Strategic Plan 2020 – 2025, the Foundation continues to offer and develop 
its cancer awareness and support services throughout Ireland. As COVID-19 restrictions 
are eased, our nursing team are again engaging with community groups, workplace, and 
school audiences directly though we will continue to offer a number of our key cancer 
awareness and support services on-line through webinars, digital and social media.

A number of multi-channel cancer awareness campaigns on, bowel cancer, skin cancer, 
prostate cancer, breast and lung cancer are all planned for July, August, September, 
October and November 2022, respectively. Two new podcast series on prostate cancer 
and breast cancer are planned as part of the Marie Keating Foundation Talks Cancer 
initiative.

Our Spring Lunch in March 2022 was the first in-person fundraising event the Foundation 
was able to hold since March 2020 and we are also planning a Celebrity Golf Classic in 
August, a 5k/10k Run in October and a Christmas Lunch in December.

From a fundraising perspective, in addition to the in-person events, the Foundation will 
implement the Fundraising Strategy 2020 – 2025 with a key focus on income growth 
through online and digital campaigns and further development of its Individual Giving 
stream of funding. 

The Foundation will implement (where possible with COVID-19 restrictions) the 6 key 
objectives of its new Strategic Plan 2020 – 2025 and report progress to the Board at 
Board Meetings using KPI metrics.

Events Subsequent to The Year End
There have been no significant events affecting the company since the year end.

Statement On Relevant Audit Information

In the case of each of the persons who are directors at the time this report is approved in 
accordance with Section 332 of the Companies Act 2014:
a) so far as each director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the 
company’s statutory auditors are unaware, and 
b) each director has taken all of the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a director 
in order to make himself or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish 
that the company’s statutory auditors are aware of that information.

Accounting Records
The measures taken by the directors to secure compliance with the requirements of 
Sections 281 to 285 of the Companies Act 2014 with regard to the keeping of accounting 
records are the implementation of necessary policies and procedures for recording 
transactions, the employment of competent accounting personnel with appropriate 
expertise and the provision of adequate resources to the financial function. The company’s 
accounting records are maintained at the company’s registered office at Unit 9, Millbank 
Business Park, Lower Road, Lucan, Co. Dublin.

Auditors
The auditors, Mazars, Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm, have expressed 
their willingness to continue in office in accordance with Section 383(2) of the Companies 
Act 2014.

On behalf of the Board

Michael O’Reilly
Director

Patricia Lawler
Director

Date: September 6th 2022
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The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable Irish law and regulations.

Irish company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under the law, the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2014, FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom (UK) and Republic of Ireland” issued by the Financial Reporting Council and The Statement 
of Recommended Practice (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), issued by the Charity Commission for England and Wales, the Charity Commission for Northern Ireland  and the Office of the Scottish 
Charity Regulator. Under company law, the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial 
position of the company as at the financial year end date and of the net income or expenditure of the company for the financial year and otherwise comply with the Companies Act 2014.

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- state whether the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards, identify those standards, and note the effect and the reason for any material 
departure from those standards; and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for ensuring that the company keeps or causes to be kept adequate accounting records which correctly explain and record the transactions of the company, enable 
at any time the assets, liabilities and financial position of the company to be determined with reasonable accuracy, enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies 
Act 2014 and enable the financial statements to be audited.  They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and 
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance of the financial information included on the company’s website.  Legislation in the Republic of Ireland governing the preparation and dissemination 
of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Directors’ Responsibilities 
Statement

On behalf of the Board

   Michael O’Reilly
   Director

   Patricia Lawler
   Director

 Date: September 6th 2022
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Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Marie Keating Foundation (‘the Company’) for the year ended 31 December 2021, which comprise the statement of financial activities, the 
balance sheet, the statement of cash flows, and notes to the Company financial statements, including the summary of significant accounting policies set out in note 3. The financial 
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is Irish law and FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland.

In our opinion the financial statements:
• give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the company as at 31 December 2021 and of its net expenditure for the year then ended;
• have been properly prepared in accordance with FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland; and
• have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (ISAs (Ireland)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of financial statements in Ireland, including the Ethical Standard 
for Auditors (Ireland) issued by the Irish Auditing and Accounting Supervisory Authority (IAASA), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Independent Auditor’s Report To The 
Members Of Marie Keating Foundation
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Other information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required 
to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2014
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, we report that:
• the information given in the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; 
• the directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements;
• the accounting records of the Company were sufficient to permit the financial statements to be readily and properly audited; and
• the financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.

We have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, are necessary for the purposes of our audit.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Based on the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the directors’ 
report.

The Companies Act 2014 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion, the requirements of any of Sections 305 to 312 of the Act, which relate to disclosures of directors’ remuneration 
and transactions are not complied with by the Company. We have nothing to report in this regard.
 

Independent Auditor’s Report To The 
Members Of Marie Keating Foundation (continued)
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Respective responsibilities

Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements
As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement out on page 110, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with 
the applicable financial reporting framework that give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 
to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (Ireland) will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Irish Auditing and Accounting Supervisory Authority’s website at: http://www.iaasa.
ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8f-a98202dc9c3a/Description_of_auditors_responsibilities_for_audit.pdf. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities
Our report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 391 of the Companies Act 2014.  Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might 
state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept 
or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

 
Aedín Morkan
for and on behalf of Mazars
Chartered Accountants & Statutory Audit Firm
Harcourt Centre
Block 3
Harcourt Road
Dublin 2

Date: 14th September 2022
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Statement Of Financial Activities  
(Including An Income And Expenditure Account)

Notes Unrestricted
Funds

€

Restricted
Funds

€

Year ended
31 December

2021
€

Unrestricted
Funds

€

Restricted
Funds

€

Year ended
31 December

2020
€

Income
Charitable activities
Grants

 
 

6
 
 
 

23,862

       
 
 

   -

 
 
 

23,862

 
 
 

209,167

 
 
 

22,500

 
 
 

231,667

Donations and legacies
Donations and gifts
Donations in kind

 

7  
 

612,225
144,000
756,225

 
 

448,292
         -

448,292

 
 

1,060,517
144,000

1,204,517

 
 

988,149
188,000

1,176,149

 
 

384,396
         -

384,396

 
 

1,372,545
188,000

1,560,545

Other trading activities
Fundraising events
Merchandise

 

8  
 

520,330
20,776

541,106

 
 
-

         -
         -

 
 

520,330
20,776

541,106

 
 

163,748
11,841

175,589

 
 
-

         -
         -

 
 

163,748
11,841

175,589

Total income 1,321,193 448,292 1,769,485 1,560,905 406,896 1,967,801

Expenditure
On charitable activities
Project and programme costs
Project overheads

 
 

9
 
 

908,035
120,474

1,028,509

 
 

448,292
         -

448,292

 
 

1,356,327
120,474

1,476,801

 
 

598,659
62,084

660,743

 
 

406,896
         -

406,896

 
 

1,005,555
62,084

1,067,639
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(Continued) Notes Unrestricted
Funds

€

Restricted
Funds

€

Year ended
31 December

2021
€

Unrestricted
Funds

€

Restricted
Funds

€

Year ended
31 December

2020
€

On raising funds
Expenditure on raising funds

10  
 

413,980

  
 

        -

 
 

413,980

 
 

384,556

 
 

         -

 
 

384,556

Total expenditure 1,442,489 448,292 1,890,781 1,045,299 406,896 1,452,195

Net (expenditure) / income 11 (121,296)          - (121,296) 515,606 - 515,606

Net movement in funds (121,296) - (121,296) 515,606 - 515,606

Funds brought forward 22,23 724,229          - 724,229 208,623          - 208,623

Funds carried forward 22,23 602,933          - 602,933 724,229          - 724,229

The notes on pages 118-135 form part of these financial statements.
There were no other gains and losses other than those presented above.
All activity presented is in respect of continuing operations. 
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            Notes 31 December 
2021

 €

31 December 
2020

 €

Fixed Assets
Tangible assets  
Intangible assets

 
15 
16

 
57,224 
8,239 

 
65,463

 
66,041 
12,485 

 
78,526

Current Assets
Debtors  
Stock 
Cash and cash equivalents

 
17 
18 
19

 
201,584 
13,482 

455,844 
 

670,910

 
26,002 
11,330 

764,943 
 

802,275

Creditors
Amounts falling due within one year

 
20 

 
(106,770)

 
(119,578) 

Net Current Assets 564,140 682,697

Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 629,603 761,223

Creditors
Amounts falling due after more than one year

 
20 

 
(26,670) 

 
(36,994) 

Net Assets 602,933 724,229

Funds Of The Charity
Unrestricted funds  
Restricted funds

 
22, 23 
22, 23

 
602,933 
          -

 
724,229 
          -

Total Funds 602,933 724,229

Balance Sheet

The notes on pages 118-135 form part of these 
financial statements.

On behalf of the Board

Michael O’Reilly 
Director

Patricia Lawler
Director

Date: September 6th 2022

116



Statement of Cash Flows

The notes on pages 118-135 form part 
of these financial statements.

            Notes 31 December 
2021

 €

31 December 
2020

 €

Cash flow from operating activities:
Net income/ (expenditure) for the year

 
(121,296)

 
515,606

Adjusted for: 
Depreciation 
Amortisation 
Movement in stock 
Movement in debtors 
Movement in creditors

 
15 
16

 
16,528 
4,246 

(2,152) 
(175,582) 
(12,808)

 
14,536 
20,996 

5,919 
194,143 
(23,131)

Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities (291,064) 728,069

Cash flow from investing activities: 
Acquisition of tangible fixed assets 
Acquisition of intangible fixed assets

 
 

16

 
(7,711) 

 
(8,624) 
(4,447)

Cash used in investing activities (7,711) (13,071)

Cash flow from financing activities 
Payment of finance lease liability

 
(10,324)

 
(18,086)

Movement in cash in the year (309,099) 696,912

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 19 764,943 68,031

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 19 455,844 764,943

Non-cash financial information
Acquisition of mobile unit through finance lease

 
 

25

 
 

 
 

65,404
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1. General Information
These financial statements comprising the Statement of Financial Activities (“SOFA”), the 
Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes constitute the individual 
financial statements of Marie Keating Foundation for the financial year ended 31 December 
2021.

Marie Keating Foundation (the “company”) is incorporated in the Republic of Ireland 
(company registration number: 342695). Marie Keating Foundation is constituted under Irish 
company law as a Company Limited by Guarantee (“CLG”) and is a registered charity.   The 
registered office is Unit 9, Millbank Business Park, Lower Road, Lucan, Co. Dublin, which is 
also the principal place of business of the company.  The nature of the company’s operations 
and its principal activities are set out in the directors’ report. The company is a public benefit 
entity as defined by the Financial Reporting Council.

2. Statement Of Compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting 
Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of 
Ireland” (“FRS 102”).

3. Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements 
are set out below.  These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented 
unless otherwise stated.

a) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis and in accordance 
with the historical cost convention modified to include certain items at fair value. The financial 
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is the Companies Act 2014, 
FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” 
issued by the Financial Reporting Council and the Statement of Recommended Practice 
(Charities SORP (FRS102)) as published by the Charity Commission for England and Wales, 
the Charity Commission of Northern Ireland and the Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator 

which are recognised by the UK Financial Reporting Council (FRC) as the appropriate bodies 
to issue SORPs for the charity sector in the UK. Financial reporting in line with Charities SORP 
is considered best practice for charities in Ireland. As noted above, the directors consider 
that the adoption of the Charities SORP requirements is the most appropriate accounting to 
properly reflect and disclose the activities of the organisation.

The financial statements have been presented in Euro (€), which is also the functional 
currency of the company. Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to 
the nearest €.

b) Income
All income is recognised in the SOFA when the company is entitled to the income, any 
performance related conditions have been met, receipt is probable, and the amount can be 
quantified with reasonable accuracy.  

Income from charitable activities
Grants from public authorities and other agencies in Ireland are credited to the SOFA in the 
year to which they relate. Grants received towards capital expenditure are credited to the 
SOFA when received or receivable, whichever is earlier. Grants are recognised when there 
is evidence of entitlement and their receipt is probable. Grant income is deferred where the 
charity is restricted by specific performance related conditions that are evident in the grant 
agreement, where there is a specification of a time period that limits the charity’s ability to 
spend the grant until it has performed that activity related to the specified time period and 
when there are specific terms or conditions within the agreement that have not been met and 
are not within the control of the charity.

Donations and legacies
Voluntary income including donations and gifts are recognised where there is entitlement, 
receipt is probable, and the amount can be measured with sufficient reliability. Such income 
is only deferred when the donor specifies that the grant or donation must only be used in 
future accounting periods or the donors have imposed conditions which must be met before 
the charity has unconditional entitlement.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Where services are provided to the charity as a donation that would normally be purchased 
from our suppliers, this contribution is included in the financial statements at an estimate 
based on the value of the contribution to the charity and recognised as a donated service 
or facility. Assets donated to the company are included in the SOFA at their value to the 
company on the date of receipt.

Income from the Temporary Wages Subsidy Scheme (TWSS) has been accounted for in 
accordance with accounting for government grants in line with the Charities SORP.

Other trading activities
Other trading activities consist of income from fundraising events and income from sale of 
merchandise. Income from fundraising events is credited to the SOFA in the year in which 
it is receivable by the company. Income from sale of merchandise is recognised when the 
significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer, income from the 
sale and the costs of the goods sold can both be measured reliably, and receipt of the 
income is probable.
 
Income is analysed as Restricted or Unrestricted.  Restricted funds represent income 
recognised in the financial statements, which is subject to specific conditions imposed 
by the donors or grant making institutions.  Unrestricted funds represent amounts which 
are expendable at the discretion of the company, in furtherance of the objectives of the 
charity.  Such funds may be held in order to finance working capital or capital investment. 

c) Expenditure
All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and has been classified under 
headings that aggregate all costs related thereto.  Where costs cannot be directly attributed 
to particular headings, they have been allocated to activities on a basis consistent with the 
use of the resources. Expenditure includes any Value Added Tax (VAT) which cannot be 
fully recovered and is reported as part of the expenditure to which it relates.

Support costs are costs incurred to facilitate a charitable activity. Support costs do not 
change directly as a result of the activity undertaken. Support costs include the central 
office functions, such as governance, finance, IT and HR. 

Governance costs are the costs associated with the stewardship arrangements of the 
company. They comprise costs arising from the constitutional and obligatory arrangements, 
as well as the costs associated with the strategic management of the charity’s activities. 
Typical costs would be audit and legal fees, direct salary, and overhead costs incurred in 
the strategic as opposed to the day to day management of the organisation.

d) Employee benefits
The charity provides a range of benefits to employees, including paid holiday pay 
arrangements and contributions to a company-facilitated Personal Retirement Saving 
Account (PRSA).

Short term benefits
Short term benefits, including holiday pay and other similar non-monetary benefits, are 
recognised as an expense in the period in which the service is received.  A provision 
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by 
employees up to the end of the financial year.

Pensions
Pension costs arising under the company facilitated PRSA scheme are charged to the 
SOFA as incurred.  

e) Operating lease
Operating lease payments are charged to the SOFA in the period to which they relate.

f) Finance lease
Assets held under finance leases are recognised in the Balance Sheet and are depreciated 
over their useful lives with the corresponding lease obligation being recognised as a 
liability.  Finance lease liability that is due within one year is classified as current liabilities. 
Otherwise, it is classified as noncurrent liabilities.

g) Taxation
The entity is a registered charity.  All of its activities are exempt from direct taxation.
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3. Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

h) Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation is provided at rates to write off the cost of each asset over its expected useful 
life as follows:

  Leasehold improvements  10 years 
  Fixtures & fittings   5 years
  Mobile units / motor vehicles 4 years 
  Computer equipment  5 years
   
i) Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost.

Intangible assets are recognised in the Balance Sheet only if they are identifiable, controllable, 
there is an expectation that they will produce future economic benefits and their cost can be 
measured reliably.  Intangible assets with a finite useful life are valued at their acquisition or 
production cost or at their appraised value, net of accumulated amortisation and impairment 
losses.  Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of the intangible asset over the shorter 
of the period expected to directly or indirectly generate economic benefits in the form of 
cash flows and a period covered by legal rights.  Useful lives are reviewed annually, and the 
impact of any changes is reflected prospectively.

The company uses the following amortisation rates:

  Website   5 years
  CRM System  5 years

j) Stock
Stock is stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price.  Cost represents invoiced 
value.  Estimated selling price comprises the actual or estimated selling price less all costs 
to be incurred in selling and distribution. Cost of stock is measured using the first-in, first-out 
(FIFO) cost formula.

k) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash consists of cash on hand and on-demand deposits.  Cash equivalents consist of short 
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash that are 
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

l) Prepayments
Prepayments are expenses paid in advance and recorded as assets before these are utilised. 
Prepayments are apportioned over the period covered by the payment and charged to the 
SOFA when incurred. Prepayments that are expected to be realised no more than 12 months 
after the reporting period are classified as current assets. Otherwise, these are classified as 
noncurrent assets.

m) Deferred income and accrued income
Deferred income pertains to grants and donations received in advance which will be 
recognised as income upon fulfilment of conditions. Accrued income is recorded as a debtor 
on the Balance Sheet where income has not yet been received but all criteria for recognition 
have been satisfied.

n) Financial instruments
Financial assets
Basic financial assets, including trade debtors, accrued income and cash and cash 
equivalents are initially recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes 
a financing transaction, where the transaction is measured at the present value of the future 
receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.  Such assets are subsequently carried at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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At the end of each reporting period financial assets measured at amortised cost are 
assessed for objective evidence of impairment. Any impairment loss is recognised in the 
SOFA.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
asset expire or are settled; or substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of 
the asset are transferred to another party; or control of the asset has been transferred to 
another party who has the practical ability to unilaterally sell the asset to an unrelated third 
party without imposing additional restrictions on transfer.

Financial liabilities
Basic financial liabilities, including trade creditors and accruals are initially recognised at 
transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the 
debt instrument is measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a 
market rate of interest.

Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in 
the ordinary course of business from suppliers.  Trade creditors are classified as current 
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less.  If not, they are presented as non-current 
liabilities.  Financial liabilities are recognised initially at transaction price and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the 
contractual obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.
 
Offsetting
Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amounts presented in the financial 
statements when there is an enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and 
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle to liability 
simultaneously.

o) Funds
Unrestricted funds are available to spend on activities that further any of the purposes 
of the charity.  Designated funds are unrestricted funds of the charity which the directors 
have decided at their discretion to set aside for a specific purpose.  Restricted funds are 
donations which the donor has specified are to be solely used for particular areas of the 
company’s work or for specific projects being undertaken by the company.

4. Critical Accounting Estimates And Judgements

The charity made judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities that were not readily apparent from other sources in the application of 
the charity’s accounting policies.  Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and 
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be reasonable 
under the circumstances.  Actual results may differ from the estimates.

a) Critical judgements made in applying the company’s accounting policies
Going concern
The COVID-19 pandemic continued to have a significant impact on the Foundation in 
2021 primarily affecting its ability to fundraise while restrictions remained in place. No 
(physical) events could take place in 2021 based on government guidance relating to 
physical distancing and group gatherings so the Foundation was reliant on raising 
funds entirely through digital, corporate and Individual Giving. Unlike in 2020, no State 
Subsidy Scheme was made available to the Charity sector in 2021. The Foundation’s 
gross income fell by 10%, while expenditure on charitable activities grew by 38% as the 
demand for our services grew throughout the pandemic. While our community nursing 
service had to be stood down due to physical distancing requirements, the numbers of 
patients and participants supported through our cancer support services and survivorship 
groups increased by 200%. The Foundation’s Board of Directors continued to review the 
Foundation’s financial situation closely throughout 2021. The Finance Sub-committee put 
particular focus on monitoring the Foundation’s cashflow forecasts on a monthly basis 
taking government COVID guidance into consideration as well as the wider economic 
environment and the impact of the cost of living increases on the Foundation’s ability to 
fundraise. 



4. Critical Accounting Estimates And Judgements (continued)

a) Critical judgements made in applying the company’s accounting policies (continued)
As the Foundation’s Fundraising Strategy seeks to further diversify its fundraising mix 
and develop new sustainable methods of fundraising, the Foundation further advanced 
its Individual Giving strategy with a view to growing income using database and digital 
marketing to attract new donors and donations to the Foundation. Adopting this approach 
and new on-line events as an alternative to fundraising and community events, in 2021 the 
Fundraising team was able to lay the groundwork for this strategy starting with face-to-face 
fundraising and digital appeals in 2021.

In view of the more sustainable nature of the new fundraising methods now being adopted 
as part of the Fundraising Strategy, with two new recruits to our Fundraising team (Corporate 
Partnerships Manager and Individual Giving Manager) and with further investment in our 
CRM system and support mechanisms all contributing to growth of fundraised income, the 
Board continues to adopt the ‘going concern’ basis in preparing the financial statements.  
The Foundation has prepared budgets and cash flows for a period of at least twelve months 
from the date of approval of the financial statements which demonstrate that there is no 
material uncertainty regarding the company’s ability to meet its liabilities as they fall due, and 
to continue as a going concern.  Based on their ongoing monitoring and review of cash flow 
forecasts and year-end financial position, the Board of Directors believes that the Company 
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence until year end 2022 and into 
2023 or for at least 12 months post approval of the 2021 financial statements. 

Accordingly, these financial statements do not include any adjustments to the carrying 
amounts and classification of assets and liabilities that may arise if the company was unable 
to continue as a going concern.

b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment 
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed 
below:

Donated services
The charity received donated services during the year such as advertising.  Charities SORP 
(FRS 102) requires that donated services should be recognised at fair value as income and 
as expenditure in the SOFA.  Management has estimated the fair value of donated services 
to be €144,000 (2020: €188,000)

Expected useful lives of tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets comprise leasehold improvements, fixtures & fittings, mobile units / 
motor vehicles and computer equipment. The annual depreciation charge depends primarily 
on the expected useful life of each type of asset.  The directors regularly review these 
expected useful lives and change them if necessary, to reflect current conditions.

In determining these expected useful lives management consider technological change, 
patterns of consumption, physical condition and expected economic utilisation of the assets.  
Changes in the expected useful lives can have a significant impact on the depreciation 
charge for the financial year. See Note 15 for the carrying amount of tangible fixed assets.

Expected useful lives of intangible fixed assets
The company amortises the intangible assets over their expected useful lives.  The expected 
useful life reflects management’s estimate of the period that the company intends to derive 
future economic benefits from the use of the company’s intangible assets.  Impairment 
reviews are carried out whenever a triggering event has occurred to determine if the carrying 
amount exceeds the recoverable amount. See Note 16 for the carrying amount of intangible 
fixed assets.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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5. Income
Income derives from activities in the Republic of Ireland and United Kingdom. Income 
comprises grants, donations, corporate sponsorship, donations in kind, fundraising income 
and merchandise income.

            2021
 €

2020
 €

Republic of Ireland 
United Kingdom

1,703,476 
66,009

1,769,485

1,958,634 
9,167

1,967,801

123Annual Report 2021
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Current year

Unrestricted
Funds
2021

€

Restricted
Funds
2021

€

Total
Funds
2021

€

Grantor

Pink Ribbon Foundation
Cadbury Foundation
St. James Place

Grant Name

Pink Ribbon Night
Cadbury Foundation
International Grant Scheme

Purpose

Breast Cancer Awareness
Mobile Outreach Services
Survive and Thrive and Positive Living 
Groups

 
 
 

15,059
6,019
2,784

23,862

 
 
 
-
-

           -

 
 
 

15,059
6,019
2,784

23,862

Prior year

Unrestricted
Funds
2020

€

Restricted
Funds
2020

€

Total
Funds
2020

€

Grantor
Pink Ribbon Foundation
The Hospital Saturday Fund
Pobal
NCCP

Grant Name
Pink Ribbon Night
Replacement of Mobile Unit
Covid Stability Fund
Survive & Thrive Program

Purpose
For general operations of the 
Company
MKF mobile outreach service
For general operations of the 
Company
6 week Survive & Thrive Programme 
for cancer survivors

 
 
 

9,167
-

200,000 

209,167

 
 
 
-

13,500
- 

9,000

22,500

 
 
 

9,167
13,500

200,000 

9,000

231,667

6. Charitable Activities

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Unrestricted
Funds
2021

€

Restricted
Funds
2021

€

Total
Funds
2021

€

Unrestricted
Funds
2020

€

Restricted
Funds
2020

€

Total
Funds
2020

€

Donations and gifts
Donations in kind

 
612,225
144,000
756,225

 
448,292

         -
448,292

 
1,060,517

144,000
1,204,517

 
988,149
188,000

1,176,149

 
384,396

         -
384,396

 
1,372,545

188,000
1,560,545

7. Donations and Legacies

Donations and gifts include TWSS income received in 2021 amounting to NIL (2020: €52,653). 

2021
€

2020
€

Fundraising events
Merchandise

520,330
20,776

541,106

163,748
11,841

175,589

8. Other Trading Activities

All income from other trading activities is classified as unrestricted funds.
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2021
€

2020
€

 
Restricted: 
Cancer and health awareness 
Survivorship and research 
Comfort fund 
Hospital refurbishment

 
 

376,341 
71,951 

- 
 
 

448,292

 
 

328,343 
78,553 

- 
 
 

406,896

Unrestricted: 
All other cancer awareness and support services and charitable activities 
Overheads

 
908,035 
120,474 

1,028,509 
 

1,476,801

 
598,659 
62,084 

660,743 
 

1,067,639

2021
€

2020
€

Unrestricted: 
Fundraising events 
Third party events 
Coin boxes 
Merchandise

 
369,035 

8,902 
27,192 
8,851 

 
413,980

 
304,527 
51,518 
20,040 
8,471 

 
384,556

9. Expenditure on Charitable Activities

10. Expenditure On Raising Funds

Notes to the Financial Statements
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2021
€

2020
€

Net (expenditure) / income is stated after charging:
Directors’ remuneration
Depreciation (Note 15)
Amortisation (Note 16)
Auditors’ remuneration – for external audit services
Operating lease expense

-
16,528
4,246
7,995

29,837

-
14,536
20,996
7,995

30,575

2021
€

2020
€

Wages and salaries 
Social welfare costs 
Retirement benefit costs

652,029 
70,387 
16,854 

 
739,270

494,356 
38,704 
16,631 

 
549,691

11. Net Income/ (Expenditure)

12. Staff Costs

127Annual Report 2021
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2021
€

2020
€

Administration 
Services

6 
11 

 
17

5 
9 
 

14

2021
€

2020
€

Salary range: 
€60,000 - €70,000 
€70,000 - €80,000 
€80,000 - €90,000

 
2 
2 
1

 
2 
- 
2

Notes to the Financial Statements

The average monthly number of persons employed by the company during the year is 17 (2020: 14) analysed as follows:

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer’s pension cost and employer’s PRSI) is greater than €60,000 is 5 (2020: 4) as follows:

No benefits in kind are payable by the company. The total employee benefits (including employer’s pension cost 
and employer’s PRSI) received by the CEO amounts to €102.1k. (2020: €97.9k).

Directors’ remuneration and transactions
No remuneration or other benefits have been paid or are payable to any directors directly or indirectly from the 
funds of the charity. No expenses were incurred by the directors.

12. Staff Costs (Continued)
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13. Taxation

14. Pension

15. Tangible Assets

The company’s operations are not for profit and accordingly the company avails of the company’s exemption 
from corporation tax.

The charity facilitates a PRSA scheme for its employees, the contributions to which are paid to an independently 
administered fund.  The retirement benefit costs included at Note 12 for the year represent contributions payable 
to the fund. 

Leasehold  
improvements

€

Fixtures &  
fittings

€

Mobile 
units

€

Computer  
equipment

€

Coin  
boxes

€

Total 

€

Cost 
At 31 December 2020 
Additions 
At 31 December 2021

 
81,878 

-
81,878 

 
13,763 
         -
13,763 

 
500,863 

-
500,863 

 
 84,050 

7,711
 91,761 

 
17,939 
         -
17,939 

 
698,493

7,711
706,204

Accumulated Depreciation 
At 31 December 2020 
Charge for year 
At 31 December 2021

 
81,878 

-
81,878

 
  12,284 

 543  
12,827 

 
441,999
13,081 

455,080 

 
 78,352 

2,904   
81,256 

 
 17,939     

 -     
17,939 

 
  632,452    

  16,528
648,980

Net Book Value 
At 31 December 2020 
At 31 December 2021

 
-
-

 
1,479

936

 
58,864
45,783

5,698
10,505

 
-
-

66,041
57,224
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16. Intangible Assets

17. Debtors 18. Stock

Notes to the Financial Statements

Website 

€

CRM 
System

€

Total 

€

Cost 
At 31 December 2020 
Additions 
At 31 December 2021

 
66,963 

66,963 

 
36,639 
         

36,639 

 
103,602

103,602

Accumulated Amortisation 
At 31 December 2020 
Charge for year 
At 31 December 2021

 
62,788 

889
63,677

 
 28,329  
 3,357

31,686

 
91,117
  4,246
95,363

Net Book Value 
At 31 December 2020 
At 31 December 2021

 
4,175
3,286

 
8,310
4,953

 
12,485
8,239

2021
€

2020
€

Trade debtors 
Accrued income 
Prepayments

66,005 
109,744 
25,835 

201,584

12,780 
- 

13,222 
26,002

2021
€

2020
€

Promotional stock 13,482 11,330

Trade debtors
All trade debtors are due within 30 days.  Debtors are shown net of impairment in 
respect of doubtful debts.

The replacement cost of stock does not differ materially from the amount as stated above.
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19. Cash and Cash Equivalents

20. Creditors

2021
€

2020
€

Cash at bank and in hand 455,844 764,943

2021
€

2020
€

Amounts falling due after more  
than one year 
Finance lease liability

 
 

26,670

 
 

36,994

2021
€

2020
€

Amounts falling due within one year 
Trade creditors 
Accruals 
Deferred income (Note 21) 
Short-term finance lease liability 
Taxes and social security costs 
Pension 

31,690 
26,302 
8,875 

10,324 
25,888 
3,691 

 
106,770

38,807 
24,520 
20,000 
10,324 
24,334 
1,593 

 
119,578

Trade creditors
The repayment terms of trade creditors vary between on demand and 30 days.  
No interest is payable on trade creditors.

Accruals
The terms of accruals are based on the underlying contracts.  

Taxes and social security costs
Taxes and social security costs are subject to the terms of the relevant legislation.  
Interest accrues on late payment.  No interest was due at the financial year end date.
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21. Deferred Income

Notes to the Financial Statements

2021
€

2020
€

At beginning of year 
Received during the year 
Income earned during the year 
At end of year

20,000 
8,875 

(20,000) 
8,875

9,700 
20,000 
(9,700) 
20,000

Unrestricted
Funds
2021

€

Restricted
Funds
2021

€

Total
Funds
2021

€

Unrestricted
Funds
2020

€

Restricted
Funds
2020

€

Total
Funds
2020

€

Opening balance 
Net movement
Closing balance

724,229
(121,296)

602,933

-
-
-

724,229
(121,296)

602,933

208,623
515,606
724,229

-
-
-

208,623
515,606
724,229

Represented by:
Fixed assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities

 
65,463

670,910
(106,770)
(26,670)

 
-
-
-

         -

 
65,463

670,910
(106,770)
(26,670)

 
78,526

782,275
(99,578)
(36,994)

 
-

20,000
    (20,000)

         -

 
78,526

802,275
(119,578)

(36,994)

Net assets 602,933          - 602,933 724,229          - 724,229

22. Movement in Funds
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23. Statement of Funds 

24. Financial Instruments

2021
€

2020
€

Financial assets at amortised cost 
Trade debtors 
Accrued income 
Cash at bank

 
66,005 

109,744 
455,844

 
12,780 

- 
764,943

Financial liabilities at amortised cost 
Trade creditors 
Accruals 
Finance lease liability

 
31,690 
26,302 
36,994

 
38,861 
24,520 
47,318

The analysis of the carrying amounts of the financial instruments of the charity required under Section 11 of FRS 102 is as follows:

31 December
2020

€

Income

€

Expenditure

€

31 December
2021

€

Restricted funds
Unrestricted funds
Total funds

-
724,229
724,229

448,292
1,321,193
1,769,485

(448,292)
(1,442,489)
(1,890,781)

-
602,933
602,933

31 December
2019

€

Income

€

Expenditure

€

31 December
2020

€

Restricted funds
Unrestricted funds
Total funds

-
208,623
208,623

406,896
1,560,905
1,967,801

(406,896)
(1,045,295)
(1,452,191)

-
724,229
724,229
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25. Financial Commitments

Notes to the Financial Statements

2021
€

2020
€

Within one year 
Within two and five years

897 
- 

897

1,793 
897 

2,690

2021
€

2020
€

Within one year 
Within two and five years

10,324 
26,670 
36,994

11,588 
35,730 
47,318

Operating lease
Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

The lease of the rented premises is currently under negotiation. The annual rent per the current operating lease in place is €28,782.

Finance lease
In 2020, the Company acquired a mobile unit through finance lease at €65,404. The carrying amount of the mobile unit as at 31 
December 2021 is €45,783 (2020: €58,864).

Total future minimum lease payments under finance lease are as follows:
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26. Related Party Transactions
Key management personnel
All directors and certain senior employees who have authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the company are considered to be key management 
personnel.  Total remuneration in respect of these individuals is €412,331 (2020: €307,565), including employer social insurance contributions and employer pension contributions.  Board 
members operate in a voluntary capacity. The remuneration of key management personnel is determined by the Board.

•  No remuneration or other benefits have been paid or are payable to any directors directly or indirectly from the funds of the charity.
•  No expenses were incurred by the directors.

27. Events Subsequent to the Year End
There have been no significant events affecting the company since the year end.

28. Approval of Financial Statements 
The financial statements were approved by the directors on 6th September 2022.
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